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Little Rock Municipal Airport Commission
Little Rock, Arkansas

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Bill and Hillary Clinton
National Airport (Airport or LIT), for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. The CAFR, which was
prepared following the guidelines recommended by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United
States and Canada (GFOA), contains financial statements and statistical data that fully disclose all material financial
operations of the Airport. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with Airport management. To the best of our knowledge and belief,
the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to fairly present the
financial position and results of operations of the Airport. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an

understanding of the Airport’s financial activities have been included.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement and should be read in
conjunction with the MD&A. The Airport’s MD&A can be found on Pages 31 through 49 of this report.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The Airport operates as a self-sustaining component unit of the City of Little Rock, Arkansas. The Little Rock
Municipal Airport Commission (Commission) was created by referendum in 1951. The Commission consists of
seven members who are appointed by the City of Little Rock Board of Directors in accordance with state law.

They are empowered to do all things necessary to manage, operate, improve, extend, and maintain the Airport,
related properties and facilities, and to adopt such rules and regulations as deemed necessary. On May 3, 2013, the
Commission officially changed the name of the Airport from the Little Rock National Airport to the Bill and Hillary
Clinton National Airport.

Adema Fedd O Mrport Boad  Lithe Rock, Adkansas  T2302.4489
£01-372.343%  FAX 501-372-0812
wiwew, Cltonairport com
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As an enterprise fund, the operation of the Airport depends on revenues received from airlines and other tenants
serving the Airport. The airlines operate by permit under rates established by resolution and based on an airfield
residual and terminal compensatory rate-setting methodology. The FAA regulates how airports set airline rates
and charges and determine aeronautical revenues. The terminal rate to the airlines is based on cost and space
used by the airline. LIT’s rate structure arrangement allows the Airport to retain revenues received from other
airport tenants and concessions and effectively manage capital assets in a way that (1) promotes a self-sustaining

financial structure, and (2) provides a solid foundation for growing and improving the Airport infrastructure.

AIRPORT FACILITIES

The Bill and Hillary Clinton National Airport is the largest commercial airport in the state. LI'T’s primary air
service area comprises four counties in the Little Rock area and attracts passengers from 62 counties statewide
as well as passengers from neighboring states. It occupies over 2,000 acres of land, has two parallel commercial
service runways and a third runway used primarily for general aviation operations. The airport site, known
originally as Adams Field first opened in 1917 as the Little Rock Intermediate Air Depot, operated by the

U.S. Army Signal Corps. Commercial airline services started in 1930, and the present terminal was originally
constructed in 1972. The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) classifies the Airport as a small air traffic hub.

During fiscal year 2015, the Airport accommodated approximately two million commercial passengers.

Commercial service airlines currently operate from 12 gates and a recently expanded ticket lobby. The Airport
offers a variety of automobile parking options at various price points. Covered parking is available for hourly or
daily customers in a three-story parking garage containing 851 parking spaces, which is conveniently attached via
an enclosed, air-conditioned pedestrian bridge to the terminal. Surface parking is available for hourly customers

using the terminal. Economy parking is also available with complimentary shuttle bus service to the terminal.

Rental cars are available from each of the major national rental car companies operating in the consolidated
rental car area located on the first floor of the parking garage. General aviation customers are provided aircraft
tie-down, hangar storage, fueling and associated services by TAC Air and Fly Arkansas, both full-service, fixed-

base operators located on the west side of the airfield.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK
Economic activity in the Little Rock region is directly linked to the production of goods and services in the
rest of the United States. Airline travel and the movement of air cargo through LI'T is directly related to the

economic performance of the U.S., Arkansas, and the Little Rock metropolitan area economies.
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POPULATION

Central Arkansas, also known as the Little Rock Metro (Metro) and designated by the United States Office of
Management and Budget as the Little Rock-North Little Rock-Conway Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), is the
most populous metro area in the state of Arkansas and the 66th-largest metropolitan statistical area in the United
States. As presented in the tables on Page 68, the population for the Metro was 729,135 in 2015, according to the
U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, and was concentrated primarily in Pulaski and

Faulkner Counties. This represents a one percent increase compared to 724,385 in 2014.

The Little Rock Metro per capita personal income at January 1, 2015 ($40,925) was higher than the state average
(837,782) but lower than the national average ($46,049). As presented on Page 69 of this report, the pattern of
per capita income growth in the Metro has generally mirrored the pattern of growth within the state, albeit at a

slightly lower level, over the past decade.

UNEMPLOYMENT RATE

During 2015, the State of Arkansas and the Little Rock Metro showed substantial reductions in the
unemployment rate. For the Metro, the unemployment rate at January 1, 2015, was 5.5 percent compared to a
national unemployment rate of 6.2 percent. At the end of fiscal year 2015, non-farm job increases were present
in nearly all sectors of the economy and particularly prominent in goods-producing sectors: Manufacturing and
Construction. The Arkansas Realtors Association reports that the median sale price of existing homes in Pulaski

County was $185,179 for 2015, which represents a .77 percent increase from the previous year.

MAJOR EMPLOYERS

The following table lists the top 10 private sector employers in Pulaski County. Included are four providers of
medical services—Baptist Health, Central Arkansas Veteran’s Healthcare System, CHI St. Vincent Health System,
and Arkansas Children’s Hospital. Many of the companies listed are involved in national and international

operations which rely on airline travel.

Number of
Company Employees
Baptist Health 5360
Arkansas Children’s Hospital 4000
Central Arkansas Veterans Health Care System 2800
Entergy Arkansas 2740
ATS&T 2600
CHI St. Vincent 2600
Verizon Wireless 2500
Dillard'’s Inc. 2400
Union Pacific Railroad 2000
Dassault Falcon Jet Corp. 2000
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TOURISM AND LOCAL ACTIVITIES

Visitors are attracted to the Metro by the State Capitol, the Clinton Presidential Center, and other historical
attractions, as well as the natural amenities, recreational activities, sporting events and cultural attractions in the
area. According to the Little Rock Convention and Visitor’s Bureau statistics, direct travel spending in the Little
Rock Metro area totaled $1.8 billion in 2015.

BUSINESS GROWTH

In 2006, the Little Rock Municipal Airport Commission created a task force to study the economic impact of the
growing aerospace, aviation, and defense industries on the local economy. In 2012, the Arkansas Aerospace and
Defense Alliance was organized into a group of public and private acrospace companies, government agencies,

and educational institutions dedicated to growing the aerospace, aviation, and defense infrastructure in Arkansas.

Today, approximately 180 aviation and aerospace-related companies produce more than $2.4 billion of goods
and services per year, making aviation Arkansas’ number one export. That is the equivalent of 2.2% of the
Gross Domestic Product for the State of Arkansas for 2015. As reflected on page 10 of this report, Dassault

Falcon Jet, an airport tenant, is a major contributor to the economic growth of the Metro.

AIR SERVICE

An integral component of a region’s economic growth is the availability of accessible, affordable, and convenient
air transportation service. The Airport, as the chief point of entry for many of Little Rock’s business,
government, and leisure travelers, as well as some air cargo shipments, is well suited to meet these demands for
economic activity. The Airport, which is centrally located in the state, is approximately three hours from the

furthest border and is the true gateway for economic development.

THE AVIATION INDUSTRY

Revenue generated at the Airport depends, in large part, upon the financial health of the aviation industry. In
recent years, the economic condition of the commercial service industry has undergone significant changes,
including mergers, acquisitions, and bankruptcies. Further, the industry remains sensitive to a variety of other
factors, including (a) the cost and availability of fuel, aircraft, and insurance, (b) currency values, (c) competitive
considerations, including airline ticket pricing, (d) traffic and capacity constraints, (e) governmental regulations,
including security, taxes, and environmental requirements, (f) labor actions such as strikes and other union
activities, and (g) disruptions due to airline incidents, criminal incidents, and acts of war or terrorism. However,
despite these challenges, Airlines for America (A4A), the industry trade organization for the leading U.S. airlines,
projects spring 2016 air travel to rise to the highest level ever with passenger volumes exceeding 2015’s peak by 3

percent.
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Another trend reflects the airline industry’s decision to remove and/or retire regional jets (R]s) from the air carrier
fleet due to the high fuel cost per passenger of using the RJs. However, smaller markets such as LI'T have been
impacted due to the difficulty of filling the larger aircraft. Passenger yields, associated with filling the aircraft with

passengers, are necessary in order to retain the service at the Airport.

ATIRPORT PASSENGER TRAFFIC

Passenger traffic at the Airport is affected by Little Rock Metro’s economic profile. For example, the amount and
type of commerce in the region may affect the level of business travel to and from Little Rock; or the amount

of per capita personal income in the Little Rock Metro area may affect the level of discretionary travel from the
Airport. The Little Rock Metro Area is among many metro areas across the nation still recovering from the 2009
economic downturn. Approximately two million total passengers (enplaning and deplaning) chose the Airport

during fiscal year 2015, reflecting a 4.29 percent decline from the prior year.

In addition, consolidation in the airline industry has allowed air carriers to reduce excess capacity in order to
achieve higher load factors (passengers per aircraft), charge higher fares, and realize sustained profitability. Over
recent years, the consolidations have limited competition amongst air carriers. At the end of 2015, only three
major legacy carriers remain: American, United, and Delta. Together with Southwest, these four airlines
dominate the U.S. market. Other smaller carriers, such as Alaska, Jet Blue, Frontier and Virgin America have

begun to terminate operations in small-hub airports, such as LIT, to compete in more profitable large-hub markets.

To further complicate the impacts mentioned above, the Wright Amendment, which originally governed Southwest
Airlines traffic at Dallas Love Field and restricted non-stop flights from the Airport to destinations only in Texas
and neighboring states expired on October 13, 2014. As a result, Southwest reduced the frequency of flights to
and from LIT in November 2014. The reduction in flights evidences a new strategy of the airlines in moving away

from small- and medium-hub airports to more profitable large-hub and international routes.

As reflected in the declining enplanements, the 2009 economic recession combined with reduced discretionary
income and increased airfares continues to impact air travel demand in the region. Reductions in overall seat
capacity at the Airport are evidenced in flight schedules filed by the airlines with the Official Airline Guide. As
of December 2015, the Airport was served by six scheduled passenger airlines and schelduled charters, which

provided an average of 42.4 daily scheduled aircraft departures. The Airport is also served by one all-cargo airline.

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND DEVELOPMENT

The Commission’s overall mission is to operate and develop first class, customer friendly, safe and secure airport
facilities that serve as a gateway to the world from the Little Rock region. In order to fulfill this mission, LIT is
commiitted to ensure ongoing and enhanced safety, security, and efficiency in the design and operation of the
Airport; modernizing aeronautical facilities to improve passenger access; and investing to modernize airfields to
meet federal regulatory requirements that will safely and efficiently accommodate the aircraft of today and the

foreseeable future.
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CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Each year, Airport staff prepares a five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). The CIP is reevaluated and
modified as necessary to accommodate traffic activity, security needs, and other needs that could result in
additions to or subtractions from the CIP, or changes in the timing of individual projects. Significant capital

improvements undertaken during fiscal year 2015 included:

Concourse Renovation Program

This on going $20.6 million project includes upgrades to public restrooms, building finishes, lighting, way
finding signage, gate lounge seating, roofing, communications systems, millwork, and a lightning protection
system. The program also includes the addition of new restroom facilities located adjacent to Gate 5, which
were completed and opened in July 2015. Other work includes new passenger boarding bridges for Gates 1, 3,

5, 7 and 8, mechanical system improvements, and associated site work.

West Airfield Drainage Improvements (Phase I)

This ongoing project provides airfield drainage improvements in the area of the west airfield bounded by
Runway 18-36, Taxiway P and the service road south of Runway 4L.-22R. The scope of the work consists of
removal and replacement of approximately 7,800 linear feet of pipe and drainage structures that have exceeded
their useful life. Replacing them with new construction will eliminate sink holes in the aircraft operating area

and enhance safety.

Parking Access and Revenue Control System (PARC'S)

This project replaces the existing 15 year old Parking Access and Revenue Control System (PARCS) with a new
state-of-the-art PARCS while reusing as much of the existing infrastructure and serviceable PARCS components
as possible. New features and technology, including License Plate Recognition and a Parking Guidance System,

have been implemented to increase revenue security while enhancing the customers’ experience.

Rehabilitation of Taxiways Alpha and Bravo
Both Taxiways Alpha and Bravo are primary taxi routes for commercial and cargo aircraft to get to the heavy
parking ramps on the west side of the airfield. This project will replace the existing asphalt pavement with

stronger Portland cement concrete designed for the heavier loads.

Runway 4R Safety Area Improvements

The project includes demolition and removal of the existing Engineered Materials Arresting System (EMAS)
located off the end of Runway 4R which is past its useful life and generates Foreign Object Debris (FOD) when
exposed to jet blast. The demolition and removal will also include the existing asphalt support pavement and
an asphalt blast pad at the end of the runway. A new 200’ x 200’ concrete blast pad will be constructed in

the place of the EMAS. Other work includes the construction of a 12’ x 850" access drive along the Medium
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Intensity Approach Lighting System and construction of approximately 3,000 linear feet of 20” wide concrete

perimeter road along the east side of the runway.

FEDERAL AND STATE GRANTS

The FAA provides up to 90 percent reimbursement of eligible project costs through the Airport Improvement
Program (AIP) for small-hub airports. These grants are awarded as entitlement grants, the annual amount of
which is calculated on the basis of the number of enplaned passengers and the amount of landed weight of all-
cargo aircraft at the Airport. Other discretionary grants are awarded on the basis of the FAA's determination of

the priorities for projects at the Airport and at other airports nationwide.

For fiscal year 2015, the FAA approved $14.5 million in AIP entitlement and discretionary grants for the
rehabilitation of Taxiways Alpha and Bravo and improvements to the safety area on the north end of Runway
4R22L. The FAA-grant-eligible costs through 2020 are estimated at $36 million, which anticipates $14.9 million

in discretionary funds.

The Arkansas Department of Aeronautics receives revenues derived from the sales tax paid on aircraft, aviation
fuel, aviation-related products, parts and repairs or service, and as required by state law, distributes monies in
the form of grants to the 91 public-owned/public use airports that are eligible for funding on a reimbursable,

matching basis. During fiscal year 2015, the Airport received $756,096 in approved state grant funds.

PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES

Passenger Facility Charges (PFCs) are imposed on enplaned passengers by airport operators and are collected

by airlines for the purpose of funding for airport projects that increase capacity, increase safety, enhance airline
competition, or to mitigate noise impact. The Airport is currently authorized by the FAA to impose a PFC and
to use up to $96 million of PFC revenues. The FAA estimates the charge expiration date for approved PFC
applications to be August 2016. During fiscal year 2015, the Airport received $3.7 million in PFC receipts,
bringing the total PFC receipts and interest received since May 1, 1995, under the approved applications to
$94.8 million. In fiscal year 2015, PFC revenues provided reimbursement of the matching funds on historic AIP
funded projects. The Airport is currently waiting approval from the FAA for PFC Application Number 9 in the
amount of $19.5 million, which will extend the Airport’s PFC collection authority to 2020.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES
Customer Service Initiatives
One of the Airport’s strengths is the continuous dedication to excellent customer service. To sustain and
build upon customer service, additional funds were expended during fiscal year 2015 for customer satisfaction
surveys, passenger assistance at curbside and free high-speed Wi-Fi, which has been tested and proven to be
the fastest Wi-Fi in North America. Further Wi-Fi upgrades and installation of new seating with power outlets

included are planned as part of the Concourse Renovation Program to enhance the customer experience.
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TSA Pre/ ™ Enrollment Center

In June, 2015, the Commission opened an enrollment center in the Airport for TSA Prev/™, an expedited
screening program that allows travelers to leave on their shoes, light outerwear, belts and to keep their laptop
and a 3-1-1 compliant liquids/gels bag in their carry-on suitcase without having to remove them at the
checkpoint. Enrollment centers are typically found at much larger airports. In Little Rock, airport employees
are handling enrollment as the airport would not have otherwise qualified for an on-site location under

program guidelines. Since the center opened, 1,720 customers have enrolled in TSA Prev/™ at the Airport.

Soaring Customer Satisfaction

Customer service enhancements continue to rank Clinton National Airport well above the national average
for passenger satisfaction. Results from Phoenix Marketing International’s 2015 Passenger Survey show
that overall satisfaction with the Airport was 94% for the year, eight points higher than the national average.

Passengers were most satisfied with the ease of getting to the terminal, check-in and overall facilities.

Fly Arkansas

In July 2015, the Commission signed a lease with Fly Arkansas, a new fixed-base operator (FBO), to provide
direct support of flight related activities at the Airport. The Fly Arkansas occupies Buildings 500 and 500A,
approximately 56,000 square feet, and leases an additional 136,000 square feet of ramp and parking areas of
the former Hawker Beechcraft Facility. The addition of Fly Arkansas as a tenant enhances annual facilities

and ground rents by approximately $176,000.

GLO Airlines

In September 2015, Glo Airlines, a new public charter operator, introduced daily non-stop service from
Little Rock to New Orleans with two departures daily Monday through Friday and one departure each
Saturday and Sunday. Glo is the Airport’s sixth commercial air service provider and increases the number of

destinations served to 14.

Southwest Reservation Center Reversion

In September 1994, the Commission entered into a lease agreement with Southwest Airlines to construct and
operate an airline reservation facility on Airport property. The lease had a term of 20 years; all leaschold
improvements reverted to Commission ownership on December 31, 2014. The premises, which had been
leased to Arkansas Blue Cross Blue Shield (BCBS) until the company relocated in May 2015, include a 42,800
square-foot building and associated land and parking areas. The Commission actively marketed the facility
through their real estate broker, Sage Partners & Jones Lang LaSalle and will enter a new lease agreement with

Cantrell Drug in January 2016, enhancing annual facilities and ground rents by approximately $360,000.

Dassault Falcon Jet Expansion
In November 2015, Dassault Falcon Jet completed a major expansion of its Little Rock Completion Center

that adds 350,000 square feet of production space to the facility. The centerpiece of the $60 million project is
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anew 250,000 square foot hangar earmarked for Dassault’s latest two models — the Falcon 8X ultra long range
trijet and the Falcon 5X very large body twin jet aircraft. To accommodate the new hangar and expansion,
Dassault added approximately 36 acres of airport land to its leasehold, which enhances annual ground rents by

approximately $280,000.

Debt Payoff Plan

In January 2013, the Commission announced a goal to eliminate the Airport’s outstanding debt by November
2016. During the same month, the Series 1999A Bonds were defeased on call and paid off six years early.
During fiscal year 2014, the second phase of the Debt Payoff Plan was realized with the elimination of debt
service payments on the Series 2003 Bonds. While the series bonds were not eligible for call, sufficient balances
have been deposited with the trustee (bond fund and debt service reserve), that no additional payments were
required after April 2014. The final phase of the debt elimination plan was accomplished in December 2015
when the Airport deposited $6.9 million with the trustee to pay off the Series 2007 (A&B) Bonds at first call,
November 2016. The Debt Payoff Plan will save over $7 million in reduced interest payments.

OUTLOOK FOR THE FUTURE

The recent economic recession and slow recovery along with the challenges in the aviation industry have
adversely impacted the Airport, resulting in reductions of daily flights being offered by the airlines serving our
region resulting in the decrease in enplanements in 2015. During fiscal year 2016 and future years, the Airport is

dedicated to continue development and expansion of airline service to existing and new locations.

A key goal will be to maintain the Commission’s commitment to providing superior service to our customers while

continuing to be a major economic engine and good neighbor to the surrounding community.

INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Airport’s internal control framework is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding:
(1) safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition; (2) execution of transactions in
accordance with management’s authorization; (3) reliability of financial records used in preparing financial
statements and maintaining accountability for assets; (4) effectiveness and efliciency of operations; and (5)
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost
of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived from it, and that the evaluation of costs and benefits

requires estimates and judgments by management.

All internal control evaluations occur within the above structure. We believe that LI'T’s internal control

framework adequately safeguards assets and provides assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

BUDGETARY CONTROL
The annual operating budget is proposed by Airport management and adopted by the Commission in a public
meeting before the beginning of each fiscal year. The level of budgetary control (the level at which expenditures
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may not exceed appropriations) is by commitment item. The commitment items are salaries and benefits,
professional and contracted services, materials and supplies, utilities, marketing and public relations, other
operating expenses and capital purchases. The Airport has well established policies and procedures in place that
include multiple layers of review and approval for all expenditures. Budget to actual costs are vetted with the

Finance Committee before being reviewed with the full Commission on a monthly basis.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT
BKD, LLP, a firm of independent certified public accountants, has issued an unmodified opinion on the
Airport’s financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. The independent auditor’s

report on the fiscal year 2015 financial statements is included in the financial section of this report.

AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (“GFOA”) awared a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Airport for its Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (“CAFR”) for the year ended December 31, 2014. This was the first year the Airport received this

prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized report, the contents of which conform to the program’s standards. Such report must satisfy both

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificiate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and it will be submitted to the GFOA

to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Publication of this CAFR is a reflection of the excellence and professionalism of LIT’s entire staff. The
dedicated service and efforts of the Finance Department made the preparation of this report possible. The

assistance and contribution of other members of staff should also be acknowledged, and is much appreciated.

Respectfully submitted,

P
Rofald B Mathieu, CM
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Iindepandent Auditor's Report

Untie Rock Municipal Alrport Com misslon
Bill and Hllary Clinton National Alrport
Linte Rock, Arkansas

Report on the Finandal Statements

We hawo audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Bill and Hillary Clinten National Arpori
{the Abrport], o comiponent unit of the City of Little Rock, Arkansas, a3 of and for the years ended December
31, 2015 and 2004, and the related modes to the Tinancial Satements, which collecivply comprse The
Airpart’s basic financial statoments as lisbed in the table of confents,

Management's Respansiblity for the Financial Statements

banagement & responsible for the preparation and fair preseniation of these financial statemonis n
accondance with acoounting principles generally accepbed in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of intermal contrel relevant o the preparation and fir
praseniaticn of financial statements that ame free from material misstatement, whether dus to fraud or
oo,

Apifars Responsitility

Chur responsibility & to express an opinian on these linancial statements based on our audits. We conducied
our audits in sccordance with auditing standards generally sccepted in the United States of America and the
stnndasds spplicabbe te financial sudits contained in Government Auditing Standandy, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, Those standards require that we plan and perform the awdif to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involees performing prooedures to obtain audit evidenop about the amounts and disciosares in the
financial staterments, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
thie risks of maberial missiatemaent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or emor. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor conslders tamal control mievant 1o the entity’s proparation and fair presentation
of the fimancial statemaents in order fo design awsdit procedures that ane appropriate in the cecumstances, but
not for the purpose of expredsing an apinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal contral. Accordingy,
Wit eapfess ro SUCh opinlan, An audit also inthudes evaluating the appropriatentss of actounting policles used
and the reasonableness of significant atcounting estmates made by management, as well a3 evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements,

We beliove that the audit evidence we have obitained is sufficent and appropriate to provide a basis for cur
audit opindon.

Praxity:
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statemants referred to above present fairy, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bl and Millary Clinton National Airport a5 of December 31, 3015 and 2014, and the dhanges inits
financial podition and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
atcepied in the United Stabes of America.

Other Matters
Reguired Supplemeniory Irfarmaton

fccounting principles penerally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis listed i the table of contents be presented Lo supplement the basic fnancial STatements.
fuch information, althcugh not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Gowernmental
fccounting Standards Board, who corsiders it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
finarcial statemsnid in an Appropriate operslinngl, &onomic of historical context. We have applied cartain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards gerarally
accepled in the United States of America, which corsisted of inquiries of management about the methads of
ﬁrEﬂﬂrl'l‘lﬂ theé informaticn and :mnﬂ_ﬂ'u‘: infarmaticn far cordiltancy with -l'l‘llrl.‘tl#ﬂ!l‘ll'!- FELpOrdes Eo our
inguiries, the basic financial statemrenis and other knowiedge we chitained during cur audit of the basic financial
staternents. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Supplerasatary infarmation

Gur audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinéon on the financial statements that collectively
cOMmprise the Airport's basic fnancial statements, The accompanying supplementany information cordisting of
the wehadule of sxpenditures of federal swards reguired by Tide I U5 Code of Federal Regurlobions Part 200,
Lhalfarm Administrotha Requirements, Cost Principles, ond Audit Reqeleemaents for Federad Awards, and Schedule
of Fassenger Facility Charge Bevenues and Expenditures reguired by the Possenger Racility Chorge Andit Guide
Jor Public Agencies, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
nigt @ requined part of the basic financial statements., Such information is the respensibliity of management and
wat derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying acoounting and other records used fo prepare the basic
finarcial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconcling such
inforrmation directly te the underying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements o to the basic financial statements themaelves, and other additional procedures in atcordance with
suditing itandards generslly socepbad o the United States of America. I Sur Spifesn, the inlarmation id fairly
stated, In all material regpects, in relation to the basic financial statements as 3 whole,

e r infarmation

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opindon on the basic financlal statements as a whole,
The Introdwctony and Statistical Sections listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes. of additional
analysis and are not & required part of the basic fnancial statements. Such information has ot been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not
£Xpress an opinion or prowide any assurance on .
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Other Reporting Requited by Government Auditing Stondards

in accordance with Governmend Awditing Standords, wo hove alio ssued our report dated June 1, 3016, on pur
consideration of the Alrport's imternal control over finandial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
eertnin pravisons of lows, regulations, comtracts and grant agreements and other matien, The pufpose of that
report i o describe the scope of our testing of internal control cwer financial reporting and compliance ard the
results of that testing. and nat to provide an opinion on the internal contral over finandial reporting of on
complisnce. That report s an integral part of an audit perlormed i sccordance wilh Gowernment Auditing
Stangovds in considering tha Alrpert’s intemal control cver financial reporting and compliance,

BED Lwp

indianapoits, indiana
Jung 1, 2016
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Unaudited)
December 31, 2015 and 2014

The Bill and Hillary Clinton National Airport (Airport or LIT) is an independent, fiscally self-sufficient component
unit of the City of Little Rock, Arkansas (City). The Little Rock Municipal Airport Commmission (Commission),
appointed by the City Board of Directors, is responsible for the operations and reporting as prescribed by state
legislation. As presented in the following pages, the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is provided as
an introduction to the basic financial statements of the Airport for the year ended December 31, 2015.

The MD&A has been prepared by Airport management and is offered as an analytical overview of the annual
financial activity of the Airport and how it relates to the core mission of the Commission. In order to obtain a full
understanding of the Airport's financial performance, the MD&A should be read and considered in conjunction with
the basic financial statements, which begin on page 51 of this report.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Airport’s financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The Airport

is structured as a single enterprise fund with revenues recognized when earned, not when received. Expenses are
recognized when incurred, not when paid. Capital assets are capitalized and depreciated over their useful lives. Please
refer to the notes to the basic financial statements for a summary of the Airport’s significant accounting policies.

The Airport’s basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of its financial
position and activities and include:

® The Statements of Financial Position present the net position of the Airport at the end of the fiscal year.
Net position is the difference between total assets plus deferred outflows of resources and total liabilities
plus deferred inflows of resources. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of the Airport’s financial position.

® The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present information showing the change
in the Airport’s net position during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported when the underlying
events occur, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are recorded and
reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future periods.

® The Statements of Cash Flows relates to the inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents.
Consequently, only transactions that affect the Airport’s cash accounts are recorded in this statement. A
reconciliation is provided at the bottom of the Statements of Cash Flows to assist in understanding the
difference between cash flows from operating activities and operating income.

The Notes to the Financial Statements that follow the basic financial statements provide additional information
for a more comprehensive assessment of the Airport’s financial condition.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 2015

PASSENGER AND OTHER TRAFFIC ACTIVITY HIGHLIGHTS
The following table highlights changes in LIT's key operating statistics for the last three fiscal years:

Key Operating Information 2015 2014 2013

Total Passengers (in 000s) 1,987 2,076 2,161
Enplanemerts (in 000s) 997 1,088 1,085
Cost per Enplaned Passenger $9.68 $9.03 $8.34
Aircraft Operations 99,039 80,434 96,664
Landed Weights (in 1000s) 1275478 1,425,502 1,488,921
Air mail {Ibs.) 835,163 562 267 1,260,920
Alr Freight (Ibs.) 16,723,298 16,684,302 15,282,500
Ground Rental {Acres) 235.4 2425 2425
Facility Leases (SF) 846,754 747,972 857,473

Source: Bureau of Transportation Stalistics, T-100 Domestic Market and LIT management records

ENPLANED PASSENGERS

The following chart presents the top five airlines at LIT by number of passenger enplanements for fiscal year 2015
and the comparative enplanements for fiscal years 2014 and 2013.
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Source: Monthly Airline Activity Reports
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 2015

FISCAL YEAR 2015

The FAA classifies the airport hub size based on the contribution of the Airport to the national air system. This

is measured in terms of passenger enplanements. During FY 2015, passenger traffic at LIT continued to decline
with a reported 996,837 passenger enplanements compared to 1,038,307 for FY 2014. The reduction of 41,470
passengers, or -4%, was attributed to the continued impact of the Wright Amendment on Southwest Airlines
flights. In addition, the merger of American Airlines and U.S. Airways resulted in the loss of the flight to New York.

FISCAL YEAR 2014

Departing passengers (enplanements) play a prominent role in the Airport’s financial operations. During fiscal
year 2014, passenger enplanements decreased by 47,000, or -4.3%, compared to fiscal year 2013. Of the
1,038,307 passengers that departed from the Airport, Southwest, American and Delta accounted for 75.3% of the
market share. On October 13, 2014, the Wright Amendment, which originally governed Southwest Airlines traffic
at Dallas Love Field and restricted non-stop flights from the Airport to destinations only in Texas and neighboring
states, including Arkansas, had expired. As aresult, LIT lost four daily flights to Dallas and Houston operated

by Southwest Airlines, accounting for 42,365, or -90.3%, of the passenger reductions. The reduction in flights
evidenced a new strategy of the Airline in moving away from small and medium-hub airports to more profitable
routes. American Airlines posted a 5.6% increase in the airline’s passenger traffic after merging with U.S. Airways

AIR TRAFFIC OPERATIONS
The chart presents scheduled daily flights departing from LIT at December 31, 2015, and the comparative flights
for fiscal years 2014 and 2013.

. Deslinations 3 ama 2015
Fiscal Year 2015 Allarta, GA (AT =0 i =5
Air traffic at LIT was increased by 2.1 average daily Balfimore, MD [BWI) 10 10 10
flights during 2015. The addition of twice daily Cmr‘rdhaltﬂ {CLT) Sg a0 ﬂg

. . S . Chicago. IL (MDW) 1 10 1
service to New Orleans with GLO Airlines contributed Chicago, IL (ORD) 70 a0 a0
to this gain. Additionally, United increased their daily Diallas, TX (DAL 60 a0 a0
flights to Denver to three. Dallas, T (DFW) 70 70 70

Denver, CO (DEN) 14 20 a0
Diestin, AL {DS1) - . .
Fiscal Year 2014 Detrait, MI (DTW) 10 10 10
During fiscal year 2014, LIT lost a net 3.4 daily Houston, TX (HOU) 10 . .
flights. Delta Airlines dropped one flight to Memphis; Houston, TX (1AH) S0 S0 50
) Las Viagas, NV (LAS) 10 10 10
Southwest removed three scheduled flights to Dallas Los Angeles, CA (LAX) h . o1
and one to Houston; and Frontier ceased operations, Mamphis, TN (MEM) 10 - -
eliminating flights to Denver operating three days a New Crieans, LA (SMY) " : et
) . . , New York (LGA) - 10 -
week. The reductions were offset with United adding Oriando, FL (SFB) 03 03 a3
daily flights to Denver and Chicago, and American Phoenix, AZ (PHX) 10 10 10
Airlines starting new service to LaGuardia. Saint Louks, MO (STL) i 5 ¥
Washington, DC (DCA) 10 g =]
Total Daily Flights M7 M3 434
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 2015
OVERVIEW OF LIT'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Highlights, Fiscal Year 2015
« LIT’s assets exceeded liabilities at December 31, 2015, by $361.5 million.
* Bonded debt was eliminated.
* Operating revenue totaled $31.2 million.
« Operating expenses (excluding depreciation) totaled $21.4 million.
« Net nonoperating revenue was $4.9 million.
* Federal grants totaled $3.9 million.

« Net position increased by $6.8 million.

Financial Highlights, Fiscal Year 2014
* LIT’s assets exceeded liabilities at December 31, 2014, by $354.7 million.
* Bonded debt of LIT had a net decrease of $1.2 million.
- Operating revenue totaled $30.7 million.
« Operating expenses (excluding depreciation) totaled $20.1 million.
« Net nonoperating revenue was S4.4 million.
* Federal grants totaled $6.9 million.

* Net position increased by $9.7 million.

NET POSITION
As shown in the table on the following page, and in the basic financial statements, the net position of the Airport is
represented as follows:

Net investment in capital assets - reflects the Airport’s investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings,
machinery and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Airport
uses these capital assets to provide facilities to its tenants, users and customers. Consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although, the Airport’'s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it is noted that the resources required to repay the debt are funded from operations, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate liabilities.

Restricted — An additional portion of the Airport’s net position represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they can be used under bond resolutions and federal regulations.

Unrestricted — The remaining unrestricted net position consists mainly of cash, investments and accounts
receivable that are immediately available to meet any of the Airport’'s ongoing obligations.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 2015

Mot Position
FY15ve, FY14 FYldwe Fri3
S 14 poE] % chonge % chamge
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resourced
Cavh and cayh equbalents § 24884329 & 178E37EHO % 11763483 35.1% 53 0%
Reatricied cash and cash equivalenis 13361003 19,966,253 19,749,045 -38. I L%
Artoants recetvable, beds aliowance E¥S 9 L1000 TG Pl -17.0%
Other cument assets 3,333 365 & Bas 373 N rr i 43,0 FEE, |
Copital assets, net 3 0EA61R  3XS058093  X25.R7S.BO2 A 3% 0.
QT PENCLETENE 255 R Ir9. 27 2RB,271 123 &% -11.3%
Total assets 365, BT AR5 15 GRA 41T 362,574,200 ~1.0%, 2.0
Deeferred outdlows: of resources &5 407 B8.964 - 100 0F% A5 [
Total assets ard defemred cutflows
of rescures § 365A7TABS 5369733819 5362663166 L% L9%
Linhiligies
Current labilities & 43655TH & BE30LEY 5§ 7.615.TES -1 2% =12.9%
Long-ierm et . B0 P62 10,03 735 -100.0% <16, 1%
Total labilities 4365578 15039931 17630524 TLO0% -14.7%
Wit Posithon
Mel imassimand In capital asse B RA0GT0 H132, B, 5606 111,522,353 ER D&%
ekt 12,740,259 20,179,175 L5591, 502 -16.59% 0%
Uinnesirsted D ARLOIE 21647 107 13,508, 78T 42.1% GL2%
Total net position IGLSIL007  ISAGONERN 34500642 L9% 18%
Total liatsiities and net position 5 JESETTANS 3607331819  $362,663.166 L% 1%

NET POSITION, FY 2015

Total net position may serve as a useful indicator of the Airport’s financial position. At the close of fiscal years
2015 and 2014, LIT's assets exceeded liabilities by $361.5 million and $354.7 million, respectively, representing a
19% increase, or $6.8 million.

The largest portion of LIT's net position ($322.3 million, or 89.2%) reflects its investment in capital assets less
depreciation and any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. An additional portion of LIT's net
position ($12.7 million, or 3.5%) represents resources that are subject to various restrictions on how they are used.
The remaining balance of $26.4 million (7.3%) may be used to meet LIT's ongoing obligations.

Unrestricted net position increased by 22.1% from $21.6 million at December 31, 2014, to $26.4 million at December
31, 2015. As presented, current assets consist mainly of cash, investments and accounts receivable that are
immediately available to meet any of the Airport’'s ongoing obligations. During fiscal year 2015, the Airport lowered
its current (cash) assets with the advanced extinguishment of the Series 2007 Airport Revenue Bonds. Also
during 2015, the Airport transferred funds from the PFC (restricted) account into the unrestricted cash account to
reimburse historic land acquisition and legacy costs.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 2015

NET POSITION, FY 2014

Total net position serves over time as a useful indicator of the Airport’'s financial position. At the close of fiscal year
2014 and 2013, LIT's assets exceeded liabilities by $354.7 million and $345.0 million, respectively, representing a
2.8% increase, or $9.7 million.

The largest portion of LIT's net position ($312.9 million, or 88.2%) reflects its investment in capital assets less
depreciation and any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. As noted earlier, an additional
portion of LIT’s net position ($20.2 million, or 5.7%) represents resources that are subject to various restrictions on
how they are used. The remaining balance of $21.6 million (6.1%) may be used to meet LIT's ongoing obligations.

Capital asset additions are financed through issuance of revenue bonds, grants from federal agencies, Passenger
Facility Charges (PFCs), Customer Facility Charges (CFCs) and exisiting resources. During fiscal year 2014, capital
assets, net of depreciation, decreased by $.8 million, or 0.3%.

Restricted current assets include cash and investments held for capital projects funded by PFCs as well as
bonded debt service funds held by fiscal agents. Drawdowns by fiscal agents are used for bond principal and
interest payments. During fiscal year 2014, the Airport transferred $3.0 million from the restricted PFC collections
account to unrestricted cash in order to reimburse the Airport for historic capital costs approved by the FAA.

Unrestricted net position increased by 60.2% from $13.5 million at December 31, 2013, to $21.6 million at December
31, 2014. As presented, current assets consists primarily of cash inflows that exceeded outflows during the

fiscal year. Unrestricted cash inflows were from operating activities as well as federal grant reimbursements for
eligible capital projects. Unrestricted cash outflows include capital acquisitions and transfers to fiscal agents

for debt service. During fiscal year 2014, LIT received $5.4 million in federal grant revenue from the FAA's Airport
Improvement Program (AIP) and $1.5 million in revenue through agreements with the Transportation Security
Administration (TSA).
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 2015

CHANGES IN NET POSITION SUMMARY

A condensed summary of LIT's changes in net position for fiscal years ended 2015, 2014 and 2013 is presented

below:

Changes in Net Position

FY 2% FY Hid

[ nsnesgrie Encremsa

15 014 3 decrease]  [decrensi)

Operating rined fue £ NP TO 5 MeEEe § aam s 5 SEATE 5 149773
Linas: g rti g mupavrses 21 I80 253 EL:_IE__HH Ly hﬁm JSEHIS
Dpsrating imoome belones deprecation RSy ATY 0, S, Y OGS, K2R [, 3iim) [ L0502
Leax: Depeecistion £ T A0 T 189249, 513 124,351 59, Tih 1.5, 96
Operating irsoome [, L S50 [3.382.525) [1. W60, 521) [LH%08  [202.004)
ehas nonoperating evenue, mel i E50. 018 AT NE 1.1, ey o, 0y [ 809,624}
Capitsl eonir Butions snd grants B T5 HEFLESS 19081, VH] [2.105.903] (10402 136
Changes |nonan posiicen 6 ELA D B 6L 44,504, DiE [2852,236] [15333,758)
Het position, beginming of year 54 601 Ean 145 00060 312 581 B85 9670, 288 I 41 813
Regtatements, 84 previoualy repored : 7,537, 50 - REASEE
Net position, end of year f MlLR1WE § ISR S SO0 ear §  GEIEON 5 %ENML S

NET POSITION CHANGES, FY 2015

Operating revenue for 2015 of $31.2 million increased $589K, or 1.9%, from the 2014 balance of $30.6 million.
Operating expenses at the Airport increased $1.3 million to $21.4 million. That is a 6.3% increase over the $20.1
total for 2014. With the increase in capital assets during 2015 referred to above, depreciation for 2015 was $14.5
million, or $530K greater than the $13.9 million in depreciation recorded in 2014. 2015 operating income was ($4.6
million), which was ($1.2 million) less than the ($3.4 million) from 2014.

Other Nonoperating revenue, net was $4.4 million in 2014 compared to $4.9 million in 2015, an increase of $497K
or11.3%. Capital contributions and grants for 2015 were $6.6 million. This represents a decrease of $2.1 million, or

24.5%, from the $8.7 reported in 2014. Net Position at the end of 2015 was $361.5 million. This was up $6.8 million,
or 1.9%, from the $354.7 million balance at the end of 2014.

NET POSITION CHANGES, FY 2014

Operating revenue for 2014 of $30.6 million increased $150K from the 2013 balance of $30.5 million. Operating
expenses increased $257K to $20.1 million. Thatis a 1.2% increase over the $19.8 total for 2013. Depreciation for
2014 was $13.9 million, or $1.9 million greater than the $12 million in Depreciation recorded in 2013. 2014 Operating
income was ($3.4 million), which was ($2 million) less than the ($1.4 million) from 2013.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 2015

NET POSITION CHANGES, FY 2014, CONT.

Other Nonoperating revenue, net decreased from $7.2 million in 2013 to $4.4 million in 2014, a decrease of ($2.8
million) or (391%). Capital contributions and grants for 2014 were $8.7 million. This represents a decrease of $10.4
million from the $19.1 reported in 2013. Net Position at the end of 2014 was $354.7 million. This was up $9.7 million,
or 2.8%, from the $345 million balance at the end of 2013.

As reflected in the table above, the Airport recorded an adjustment to the January 1, 2013, net position to remove
from capital assets leasehold improvements that have yet to be contributed to the Airport and to remove the
unrealized equity related to these leasehold improvements that was recorded as a liability. In addition, the Airport
recorded an asset for a leasehold improvement that was contributed to the Airport during 2012.

Also, during 2013, the Airport determined that certain assets that were recorded in the 2012 financial statements
did not include capitalized interest. The Airport recorded an adjustment to the January 1, 2013, net position to
record the capitalized interest.

The Airport also reduced the December 31, 2013, balance of interest expense by $238,539 to reflect the elimination
of amortization of bond issuance costs for 2013. Finally, the Airport reclassified $88,964 of deferred amounts on
refundings of debt from long-term debt to deferred outflows of resources in the 2013 balance sheet.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 2015

OPERATING REVENUE
LIT derives its operating revenue from several major airport business activities. The following table presents a
summary of these business activities during fiscal years 2015, 2014 and 2013:

Summary of Operating Revenue

FY 2015 FY 2004
Imcrease increate
s 04 poitb] dhicni ke dotre e
Operating Revenuet
Airling reveniaes
Landing feas $  AFiWA & HITEM 4 S0MagF & [1BSN) & 81
firline nents 500, 5o 4,590,916 4,727.95 AXS 5TH Ml Q5D
Aliling use faed 175,135 143,336 145,350 31800 (a5
Total airlire revenues 10, 156,457 0, B8, 050 5,514,753 T 557 WALATT
Monaidine ievenued
Pl Paiking p B Fe e 9,434,957 5,451, 108 [313.599] {15.1TH
Corfmiamnng 1182613 148,579 1, B8, B [, 085 T 6ES
Rertal Cars 62598 553 6,311,336 61567, 286 T 14 {10
Howairine renhy 3 A5 FE L0648, 575 1338193 0, 36 [369,617)
Other 751 M50 B8, M0 163,542 1332343}
Todtal nomsairlive mmvensey I D 79,356 ] 260 916 [ 2, A0}
Total opsambing nevenuet 31 137, - 573 5 SBT3 5 145773

Airline revenues are a major category of operating revenues and includes rents, fees and charges collected from
the airlines that utilize the Airport facilities. LIT establishes rate setting methodologies according to best industry
standards as described below.

Landing fees are calculated on cost recovery methodologies for the airfield area, which includes all runways,
taxiways, associated navigational and operational aids and other airside properties. Landing fee rates are set
using budgeted expenses and estimates of landed weight. To maintain a competitive landing fee rate, LIT has
historically applied a discretionary credit.

The fees are reconciled at the end of the year using actual expenses and actual weight, and any variance in excess
of the discretionary credit is applied to the following year rate. Landing fees are charged to passenger and cargo
for commercial aircraft landings, as well as from the fixed-base operators for general aviation flights at the Airport.
Airline rents are established on a cost recovery methodology that includes both operating costs and capital
purchases for the terminal area. The compensatory rate structure allows the Airport to transfer a pro-rata share of
the terminal costs to the airlines based on usable space.

Airline use fees include charges imposed for the use of Airport-operated (common use) facilities including hold
rooms, gates and jet bridges. Additionally, this category includes ramp and remain overnight aircraft parking fees.
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OPERATING REVENUE, FISCAL YEAR 2015
The following charts illustrate the proportion of sources of operating revenue for fiscal years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014:
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For fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, total operating revenue was $31.2 million, a $589,473, or 1.9%, increase
from the prior fiscal year. The growth in airline revenues was $327,557.

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, landing fees were $5.0 million and $5.1 million,
respectively, for a decrease of $139,921. The landing fee rate increased from $3.65 per 1,000 pounds to $3.90 per
1,000 pounds.

Airline rental revenues posted a growth of $435,678, or 9%, as a result of the increased rate per square foot. The
increase in the rental rate from $31.25 per square foot to $34.18 per square foot provided for incidental costs
associated with the new in-line baggage handling system (BHS). Additionally, the in-line BHS added 34,680
square feet to the airline leased space.

During fiscal year 2015, nonairline revenues increased $261,916 or 1.3%, compared to fiscal year 2014. A majority
of this increase came from nonairline rents through an annual adjustment in rental rates, as well as a partial year
lease of the former Southwest Airlines reservation center.

Concessions collected in the terminal for fiscal year 2015 reflected a 5.3% reduction, or $65,906 loss, in revenues
compared to fiscal year 2014. The decrease is attributable to the decline in passengers.

Rental car revenues totaling $6.4 million for fiscal year 2015 were up from the $6.3 million posted for fiscal year 2014.
During the FY 2014, the former Southwest Airlines Reservation Center reverted to the Airport. The Airport was able

to rent the facility to the existing tenant, Blue Cross Blue Shield, for the first four months of 2015. Additionally, the
Airport was able to lease some of the former Hawker hangar space to Dassault Falcon.
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OPERATING REVENUE, FISCAL YEAR 2014
The following charts illustrate the proportion of sources of operating revenue for fiscal years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013:
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For fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, total operating revenue was $30.7 million, a $149,773, or 0.5%, increase
from the prior fiscal year. The growth in airline revenue was $354,177. Non-airline revenue had a net decrease of
$204,404mostly due to reduction in nonairline rents.

Landing fees totaled $5.1 million in fiscal year 2014 compared to $5.0 million reported in fiscal year 2013. Landing
fee rates were increased from $3.39 per 1,000 pounds to $3.65 per 1,000 pounds during 2014. This represented the
first landing fee increase in five years. Landing fee weights declined as a result of variations in passenger carrier
air service through a combination of increases and/or decreases in flights and the size of aircraft used for flights.

Airline rents of $31.25 charged per square foot of actual terminal space utilized by the airlines increased compared
to $30.34 charged in fiscal year 2013. Airline use fees include charges imposed for the use of Airport-operated
(common use) facilities including hold rooms, gates and jet bridges.

Additionally, this category includes ramp and remain overnight aircraft parking fees. For fiscal year 2014, a 1.4%
decrease is reported compared to fiscal year 2013. This represents a reduction in the utilization of LIT's common
use facilities, which are charged on a per turn basis.

Nonairline revenues include rates, fees and charges imposed for other Airport businesses. As illustrated in the
preceding pages, this includes public parking, terminal concessions, rental car operations and other revenues. For
fiscal year 2014, nonairline revenues totaled $20.9 million (a 1.0% decrease) compared to $21 million in fiscal year
2013. The changes in the larger components of nonairline revenues are described below.

Public parking revenues collected from vehicle parking areas, including metered and valet parking, totaled $9.4
million in fiscal year 2014. This reflects a 0.3% decrease compared to $9.5 million reported for fiscal year 2013. Parking
revenues were impacted primarily by the 4.3% reduction in enplaned passengers for the current fiscal year.
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OPERATING REVENUE, FISCAL YEAR 2014, CONTINUED

Concession fees from restaurants, advertising and vending totaled $1.25 million in fiscal year 2014. This reflects a
6.8% increase compared to $117 million reported for fiscal year 2013. Increases in revenues from restaurants and
advertising accounted for most of this increase.

Rental car operations are a combination of various charges imposed on rental car agencies for the privilege

of operating at the Airport. As a provision of the 2010 Rental Car Concession Agreement, the agencies paid
percentage fees collected on gross revenues of $3.5 million in fiscal year 2014 compared to the $3.4 million
collected in fiscal year 2013 (a 2.9% increase). Also provided in the agreement are standard facility rents the
agencies will pay for space occupied on-airport. These rents will be phased in over the contract term with a
subsidy provided by the CFC. The CFC is a facility charge imposed for each rental car transaction day. The CFC
became effective December 2009, and for fiscal year 2014, the Airport collected $2.4 million, a slight decrease
from the $2.5 million collected in fiscal year 2013.

Nonairline rentals include commercial and industrial facility and ground rents that totaled $3.1 million for fiscal
year 2014. These rents were down 8.1% compared to the $3.3 million in fiscal year 2013 as a result of Hawker
Beechcraft Chapter 11 Bankruptcy action to terminate its 45-year lease and transfer ownership of the 400,000
square foot facility to the Airport. The $545,392 loss to annual rental income was offset with the announcement
of Dassault Falcon Jet to expand facilities in Little Rock, whereas an additional 36.4 acres were added to the
footprint of its leasehold, which added $73,438 to commercial rents. Additionally, a slight increase in the facility
rents was attributable to Consumer Price Index (CPI) adjustments on certain leased facilities.

Other operating revenues, including ground transportation revenues, reflected a decrease of 15.6% in fiscal year
2014 compared to fiscal year 2013.

OPERATING EXPENSES

The following table presents a summary of LIT operating expenses for the fiscal years ended

December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013. Included in other operating expenses are expenses for advertising and public
relations, training and travel, insurance, lease and other miscellaneous items.

Summary of Operating Expenses
FY 2015 FY 3004
ngradda (LT
S A 13 {decroase)  [decremie)
Sxlmiiey arsd bamelicy 5 11,153, 730 5 10330005 % 9l 9% £ L0578 rS AFTaID
Services and supplies 5,007,857 5,125,363 5484, 107 {57,506] {308 744)
Maintenance and repain 1,765,116 1,111,564 1071853 151,552 w71
Utilities 1,857,845 1,574 GBS 1,784,159 {106, 840) 190,526
Drthees 2,005,745 1, 750,850 1,922,200 265,853 [362,309)
Dperating expenses before deprecistion 71,380,293 20,800, 505 19,844,655 1,278,784 56,514
Die praciaticn 14,455,027 13,929,312 12,004,349 529715 1914563

Taotal operating sxpenses 5 !'E_-,.E.H,!._‘."I:I L 3 AN E !!Iﬁﬂﬂ E EEH E &lhlﬁf
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OPERATING EXPENSES, FISCAL YEAR 2015
The following charts illustrate the proportion of categories of operating expenses for fiscal years ended December
31,2015 and 2014:
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For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, operating expenses were $35.8 million, a $1.8 million, or 5.3%,
increase from the prior fiscal year. Expense categories that posted notable fluctuations were maintenance and
repairs, up by $153,552, or 13.8%; salaries and benefits, up $1.1 million, or 10.5%; and depreciation, up by $529,715.
The remaining expense accounts had an aggregate increase of $61,509.

For maintenance and repairs, the reversions of the former Hawker facility and the Southwest Reservation Center
increased the properties the Airport had to maintain during 2015.

Salaries and benefits increased as a result an average merit increase of 3% and added costs related to changes in
employee benefits including medical, insurance and retirement.

Depreciation increased by 3.8% in fiscal year 2015 where the increase reflects the capitalization of the aggressive
capital investment program undertaken in recent years, including terminal renovations, and several airfield
projects.




FINANCIALSECTION

BILL AND HILLARY
CLINTON NATIONAL AIRPORT
N—

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 2015

OPERATING EXPENSES, FISCAL YEAR 2014
The following charts illustrate the proportion of categories of operating expenses for fiscal years ended December
31, 2014 and 2013:
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For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, operating expenses were $34.0 million, a $2.2 million, or 6.8%,
increase from the prior fiscal year. Expense categories that experienced notable changes were salaries and
benefits, up by $497,610; utilities, up by $190,528; and depreciation, up by $1.9 million. The remaining expense
accounts had an aggregate net decrease of $431,321.

During fiscal year 2014, salaries and benefits increased 5.2% primarily as a result of average merit increases of 3%
and added costs related to changes in employee benefits including medical, insurance and retirement. The final
phase of the increased employer participation in the Defined Contribution Plan went into effect in January 2014.

Utilities increased by 10.7% during fiscal year 2014 primarily as a result of the Hawker Beechcraft facility reverting
to the Airport in December 2013.

The increase in depreciation charges from $12.0 million in fiscal year 2013 to $13.9 million in fiscal year 2014 was
due to the completion of certain major projects in the terminal and airfield. During fiscal year 2014, $16.0 million
was reclassified from construction work in progress to depreciable capital asset categories.
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NONOPERATING TRANSACTIONS

Nonoperating transactions are activities that do not result from providing services as well as producing and
delivering goods in connection with LIT's ongoing operations. The following table presents a summary of these
activities during fiscal years 2015, 2014 and 2013:

Summary of Nonoperating Transactlons
FY 2015 FY 2004
incroase ingne e
200% o4 3 (decroase]  (decrease)
Homoperaming mevenue
Pacse rge Faciliny charges % RERLWME % 4DG0TFY §F  A4BO0FSO4 5 (poeARSy 5 (47222)
Federal operating grants B LT ] 254,060 FERELT] 03,585
Inténest ingoma AML1E 201345 1L 185 [ bL1S0
Gair on disposal of assets 2.1 11,186 28334 11,5357 (37.208)
Other nonoperating revenue 1,073 165 185153 2 BOS BEE BT |3,750.455)
Teaal noaopsmting revenues ] ARSI 5 ATIIAM 5 TMAIM 5 e 5 11:,9!11!:&
interest gapense, net of capitalired imterest 5 GlTEE 5 E L I a5 & MBXE 5 1R5E
Paryirep apeniy and rusthees 1, & Ta8 B2 T A58 ok
Loss on divposasd of atsets - - L3S aay [139.507)
CHEsEr AanOEEraling Eapbnie - - - - -
Total nonops rating axpenies 5 GiLia % AlL3E 5 525431 5 Inraoe 5 (111183
Federal, stute snd bocal prants g 43mMmI1e 5 &7 5 S8seAm7 £ [23129) & E1iama
Contribwtion Trom heggass &, L S6ED LB 334 131178 DEE G VLTI SN

Total eapital contributions andgrants 6§ RS8TS]  §  RGTESS S IO0ELTE1 S [1129509) S{M0.407.126)

NONOPERATING TRANSACTIONS, FISCAL YEAR 2015

PFCs are imposed on enplaning passengers. For fiscal year 2015, the reduction of $194,426 in PFCs from the prior
fiscal year represents a 4.8% decline in collections aligned with the loss in passenger traffic. Other nonoperating
revenue increased from $145,193 in fiscal year 2014 to $1.1 million in fiscal year. This was primarily due to an
increase in aviation fuel tax receipts. A three year audit of vendors selling aviation fuel accounted for a majority of
this increase.

The decrease of 12.4% in federal operating grants reflects a reduction in TSA utility reimbursements due to
replacement of older screening equipment with newer efficient equipment.

During fiscal year 2015, interest income increased 34.2% due to higher cash balances resulting from the
reimbursement of historic costs. Interest expense increased due to the early retirement of the 2007 Bonds. As
referenced earlier, this will result in a significant savings in interest expense in future periods.




é _ CLINTON NATIONAL AIRPORT
FINANCIALSECTION g

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 2015

NONOPERATING TRANSACTIONS, FISCAL YEAR 2014

PFC income for fiscal 2014 totaled $4.1 million, a 5.7% reduction from the $4.3 million collected in fiscal year
2013. The decrease results from the decline in enplaned passengers and a change in timing of ticket purchases
compared to the previous year. PFCs are collected at the time the airplane tickets are purchased and not at the
time of travel. The proceeds are then remitted to the Airport in the month following the ticket purchase.

Federal operating grants include reimbursement of costs associated with (1) law enforcement officers (LEO), (2)
the Airport’s canine program and (3) utilities associated with TSA-leased space.

The increase of 35.5% includes an increase Airport Improvement Program (AIP) entitlement grants received during
fiscal year 2014.

During fiscal year 2014, interest income increased 5.3% as cash balances increased throughout the year. FAA
reimbursements for historic (Area 1) land acquisition costs as well as a reduction in construction projects are primary
reasons cash increased during the year. Interest expense capitalized during fiscal year 2013 was greater than the
amount capitalized during the current year. This resulted in a 4.8% increase in interest expense in fiscal year 2014.

Capital contributions decreased $10.4 million, or 54.5%, compared to contributions reported for 2013. Federal
Grants increased $1.1 million. Contributions from lessees reflect tenant leaseholds that have expired and facilities
have reverted to the Airport. During fiscal year 2014, the Southwest Airlines reservation facility was recorded at fair
value of $1.9 million. A significant reduction to fiscal year 2013 which recognized the 400,000 square foot complex
vacated by Hawker Beechcraft.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Sumimary of Capital Assets

Net of Accumulated Depraciation
(i theousamds)
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As presented in Note 4 of the Financial Statements, and summarized above, LIT's investment in capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation, as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, was $324.1 million and $325.1 million,
respectively. This investment, which accounts for 88.6% and 87.9% of LIT's total assets as of December 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively, includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment and vehicles and construction in
progress.
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CAPITAL ASSETS, FISCAL YEAR 2015
The following assets were capitalized during fiscal year 2015:

- Runway 4L/22R shoulder & edge lights - $3.4 million

- Runway 4L/22R centerline & touchdown lighting - $1.4 million

- Land acquisitions (Hollinsworth Grove, Cooper Road & Pecan Grove) - $2.1 million
- Area one land acquisition - $61,898

- Terminal redevelopment and upgrades — $574,441

- Tug tunnel pavement investigation - $94,979

- AMF fueling system - $606,806

- Parking deck service upgrade - $465,895

- Rezoning ROW Abandonment - $38,138

- Facility reversion — Central Flying Service building 38 - $619,393
- Facility reversion — Falcon Jet plating building - $301,167

CAPITAL ASSETS, FISCAL YEAR 2014
The following assets were capitalized during fiscal year 2014:

- Part 150 land acquisition (Phase 3) - $1.4 million

- Land improvements (including demolition of AEC and AMF) - $715,000

- Land acquisition (Tyner Road) - $13,000

- Various airfield studies (including Wild Life Assessment, Utility Relocation and others) - $325,000
- Energy Savings Project (Terminal Value Engineering) — $7.1 million

- Terminal redevelopment and upgrades — $6.3 million

- Airfield vehicles and equipment - $476,000

- Computer system upgrades — $308,000

- Facility reversion — Southwest Reservation Facility — $1.9 million
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LONG-TERM DEBT

As of December 31, 2015, the Airport had transferred funds to our bond trustee to pay off the balance of the Series
2007 Airport Revenue Bonds. These funds will be used to retire the 2007 Bonds at the first call date, November
2016. These are the final outstanding bonds issued by the Airport, thereby making LIT debt-free with the
retirement of this debt.
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CREDIT RATINGS

In FY 2015, Standard & Poor's rating services affirmed the Airport’s "A” rating on general airport revenue bonds.
The rating noted a consistently improved financial risk profile despite declining enplanement trends. The strong
rating was attributable to (1) stable debt coverage in excess of 2.1x since 2005, (2) low debt burden per passenger,
and (3) good liquidity position. The outlook remained as stable.

Also during 2015, Moody'’s Investor Service affirmed the A2 underlying rating on the outstanding balance of
the airport revenue bonds. The agency noted the airport’s stable financial performance and metrics, limited
competition and adequate liquidity. The stable outlook reflects their expection that financial performance will
remain stable despite enplanement declines and debt service coverage will remain strong.
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REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide detail information on the Airport’s operations to the Little Rock
Municipal Airport Commission, management, investors, creditors, customers and all others with an interest in the
Airport’s financial affairs and to demonstrate the Commission’s accountability for the assets it controls and the
funds it receives and expends. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or any request
for additional information should be made in writing and addressed to the Finance Department, One Airport Drive,
Little Rock Arkansas, 72202 or by sending an email to finance@clintonairport.com or by calling (501) 537-7329.

JZ#

7
David Tipton, CPA, CFA, CM

Director-Finance/CFO
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Asgets
Cash amd cash eguival ents 4 1.BREA 319 % 17 883 TED
Cash and cash eguivalents = restricted - 514,132
Trade accounts receivable, net 835478 646,512
Grants receivable 2931107 5 463 604
Prepaid expenses 402 158 3E0. 714
Total current assets 29053 573 24 B89 047
Nondurtent Assets
Cash and cash equivalents =restricted 12,361,002 19452,125
Passenger facility charges receivable — restricted 379,207 288 271
MNondepreciable capital sides 75,419 268 T3 2T7E D46
Depreciable capital a5<8ls, net 1-13;5545-1-5 IEIITSDIQJE
Total noncurrent assels 336823912 344, 799 370
Total assels 365 877485 168 688 417
Dt rried Ot Flowes of Retources
Deferned amounts on refundings - 45402
Total assets and deferred outlows of resources 365 877 485 E 169,733,819

LSee Notes to Financial Statements
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2015 2014
Liabilities and Net Position
Current Liabilies
Payable from Unrestricted Assets
decoumts payable—trade 4 768,449 5 851,146
Aeerusd waged and Bemsefing 1497 059 1558 613
Due to City of Litte Rock - 100,275
Due to other gowernmental units 24,197 28210
Security deposins and wnearned revenue 337,930 189,464
Total current liabilites payable from unrestricted assets 2622635 2,727, T0E
Fagable from Restriced Assets
Accounts payaile=oonstruction 1,742.943 2.213,131
Becred interest N 75,353

Cuffent maturitiel of révenue bandi . 1,613 977
Total current liabilites payable from restricted assets 1,742,943 3,902,461
Total current liabilities 4,365 578 6630168

Nonourrent Liabilities

Rvenue bonds payable - BA048 6l
Total noncwrrent lia bilities . mﬂ.i‘-ﬁ-?
Total |iabilites 4,365 578 15039 8931
Met Pasithan

Net i nvestment in capital assets 322 340,670 312 867 506

Mot tri et o
Capital projects 12,740,299 17,737 136
Debt service - 2443 035
Totsl rettricted net podition 335,080,969 333 046 681
Unresiricted 26,430,938 11647 207
Total net positon 361,511 907 54,693 288

Total llabilities and net pasition 5 365877 485 5 368,733 819
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STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Operating Revenues
Alirline Revenues
Airport landing and related fees € 4,592 TER £ 5132680
Tereinal building rentals and redated fess 5,028,534 4,592 916
Facility use fess 175,125 143335
Total aifling feveriied 10,196 487 59.868930
HNonalrline Reve nwes
Parking fess 9,121,334 59434827
Concession fees 1,383,673 1,048,579
Car renta | operationt &, 308 853 6,311 336
Facility and groand rentals 3,458,891 3,068,575
Ground transportation 104,138 102 849
Services sald 375,274 336,260
General aviation activity 285,027 166,749
Other 115 092 110,091
Total nonsirline revenises 21041 282 20,779,366
Tatal operati ng revenues 31,237,768 0,608,296
Oiperating Expenses
Salaries, wapes and employes benafits 11,193,730 10,130,005
Profeddional and contractual dervided 4,188,836 4,265,200
Buildings and grounds maintenance 523,859 359 459
Equipment repair and maintenance T41, 257 152,105
Marketing and public affairs 26,513 112,667
L liti s 1,567,845 1,974,685
Materials and supplies 234,021 860,154
Indurance ATR, 00 171617
Other 1,400,493 1275608
Total operati ng expens e 21,380,493 20,101 509
Incoma from Oparations Before Depraciation 9,857 4% 10,546,787
Dheer &2 i Ao 14 459,027 134929312
Lozs from Operations [4,601,551) {3,382 5235]

See Notes to Financial Statements
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2015 1014
Monoperating Bevenues [Expenses)
Passenger facility charges 5 31866346 5 4,060,772
Federal operating grants 114 805 158,928
Interest | noome 210,189 b01,345
Interest experse, net of Interest capital lzed; 2015 = 588,139,
2014 =588,183 (342 548) (395 560]
Logs on extinguishment of diebt [31B.220)
Gain on disposal of assets 22723 111856
Paying agent and trustes fes [16,446) [B, 748)
Aowiation fuel taxes oo 148 BS 108
Other nonoperating | ncome 164021 &0,085
4 869 818 4373116
Increase in Net Position Before Capital Contributhons and Grants 268267 990,591
Capital Contributions and Grants
Federal, state and local grants 4375152 6777321
Conitri butlons from lessess 2,170,560 1,501 334
6,540 753 BET7D ESS
Increase in Net Position 6818015 S.670, 246
Het Position, Beginning of Year 354 693 BEER 345023 6432

Net Position, End of Year $ 361,511,907 ¢ 354,693 888
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Dperating Adctivities
Recwipts from providing services 5 31,048 602 5 30,786,117
Payments o vendars for poods and Lenvices |10, 246 526) (10,520 960]
Paymenis of salaries, wapes and benefits [11,260.284) (10,049 .4997]
Mt cash provided by aperating activities Eé-‘lil?ﬂl lﬂlilﬁﬂ
Hancapital Finandng Activities
Operating grants received 314 605% 158928
Aviation fusl taxes 909,148 85,108
Monaperating rel mbursements 164,021 &0 085
Met cash provided by noncapital financing activities 1,387,774 M 121
Capial and Related Financing Activitles
Principal paid on bands 9967 179) (1, 3E00000]
Interest paid on bonds (429,059) (407 813]
Rescquisitoen cosis on the extinguls hment of debt 1318.220) -
Proceads from sale of capital assets 13723 11,186
Acquisition and construction of capital assefs (11,783, 294) (12,207,191]
Receipts from fedaral and state grants 5,911,654 50892 316
Recwipts from passenper facility charges 3,775,320 4,097 524
Amounts paid for agent and trustes fiees 16,446} [8.748]
Met cash used incaplal and related financi g activities {11,804, 461} (4,582 .6256]
Investing Acthvities
I nberest received on cath equivalents 270189 A1 345
Mt cash provided by inmvesting activities 20 185 Ml 345
Het Change in Caxh and Cash Eguivalents (604, T06) 6,338 500
Cash and Cash Equivalants, Beginning of Year A7 850,037 31,511,537
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year §  37,245331 4 37,850,037

See Nates to Financial statements
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2015 2014
Reconcillation of Operating Loss to Met Cash Provided by
Operating Activities
Operating loss 4 [4,601,551) 4% [3382.525)
Item it Fegquiring cash
Degreciation expense 14459027 13,919,312
Change in assets and liabilites:
BLsounts redeivable [189.167) 137 821
Frepaid expenses (21.444] (&2,301]
Aotounts payable [38.,513] AET155)
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities [66.554] &0, 508
Met cash provided by operating activities E g 541 792 E IDiIIEiﬁ-ﬁﬂ
Honcash Capital and Relsted Financing Actiities
Capital assets cantributed by lessees 3 2,170,560 % 1902334

Supplermental Cash Flows Inform ation
Changes in payables for acquisition and construction
of capital assets and improvements 5 (4F0, 188) 5 (99T131)
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Note 1: Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Bill and Hillary Clinton National Airport (the Airport) is under the management and control of the Little Rock
Municipal Airport Commission (the Commission). It congists of seven members wha are appointed by the City of
Litthe Rock [City) Board of Directors in accordance with state law [A.C.A § 14-355-105). The Commission has the
gEneral power to, among other things: [a) acguire, develop and operate all property, plant and equipment as ft
may deem necessary or convenient for the promotion and accommodation of air commerce; (b) borrow maney
to finance the development of the Airport; and (c) fix, regulate and collect rates and charges for the use of the
Airport, The Executive Director serves at the pleasure of the Commission as the chief executive responsible for
the operation of the Alrport. The Executive Director hires a8 management team to assist him In that
responsibility. Any indebtedness is payable solely from the revenues of the Alrport, and the Airpart has no
ability to lewy taxes, Under federal guldedines, all revenues generated by the Alrport, must be used for airport
purposes.

Financial Reporting Enbity

The Airport is considered to be a component unit of the City. The Airport has based this determination on the
fact that the City is financially accountable for the Commission. Financial accountability is evidenced by the
fedlowing:!

&, The Commissioners are appointed by the mayor and confirmed by three-fourths vote of the elected and
qualified members of the city council [Alrport Commission Act, ACA, § 14-359-105 et seq.),

b. Any Commissioner appointed by the mayor and confirmed by three-fourths vote of the slected and
qualified mambers of the clty councll may be removed upon a three-fourths vote of the elected and
qualified members of the city council |Alrport Commission Act, ACA, § 14-359-106 et s8q.}.

Basiz of Accounting and Finnnecial Reparting

The financial staterments consist of a single-purpods busineds-type activity, which is réported on the scerual bagis
of accounting using the economic resources measurement focus.

The Airport prepares its financial statements in conformity with acoounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board

[GASE) is the accepted standand-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles.

Use of Estimales

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets, deferred outfliows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting pericd, Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Cash Eguivalents

For purposes af the statemeants of cash flows, the Alnport considers afl highly liguid investments [including
restricted assets) with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents, Cash equivalents at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, consisted of money markst accounts with brokers.

frvesiment Securities

Investment securities are stated at fair value, based on quoted market prices. Changes in the fair value of
investrments, IT any, are reported as nonoperating revenues in the statement of revenues, expences and changes
im reet position,

Receivalles

Receivables are reported at their gross value when earned and are reduced by the estimated portion that is
expected to be uncollectible. The allowance for uncollectible accounts i based on collection history, aviation
industry trends and current information regarding the creditworthiness of the benants and others doing business
with the Alrpost.

Passenger Faality Chairgres

The Federal Aviation Administration’s Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) Program allows the Alrport to [mpose and
Use PFC fees up to 54,50 for every enplaned passenger. The Alrport requests collection authority from the
Federal Aviation Administration [FAA) by submitting eligible capital projects that will enhance safety, security or
capacity; reduce noise; or increase air cafrier competition, PFCs, which are recognized as earned, are included in
noncperating revenues and amounted to 53,856,346 and 54,060,722 for December 31, 2015 and 2014,

respectively,

Customer Facility Charges [Rentoal Cars)

The Alrport imposes a per contract day fee payable by customers, accounted for, and remitted by rental car
agencies as established by Resolution. Actual customer facility charge (CFC) revenues recelved by the Airport in
accordance with the requirements of the resolution are used to pay for any legal use including, but not limited
to, rental car facility expentes, operating and maintenance costs, facility rent, debt service, operating and
malntenance expense reserve, and future costs assoclated with the rental car facility’s capital reserve fund. The
53,50 CFC became effective December 2009, CRC revenue totaled 52469, 7B0 and 52,419,357 for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

fnventories

Purchases of materials and supplies are charged to expendes as incurred, a8 such amounts are immaterial,
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Rental Income

All leases wherein the Airport is the lessor are accounted for a5 operating leases, Rental income B generally
recognized as it becomes receivable over the respective lease terms. The Airport may, from time to time, have
leases that provide for waived rent during the initial period of the lease and for rental escalations throughout the
lease term, Inaccordance with GASE Statement No, 13, Accounting for Cperating Leases with Scheduled Rent
increases, the related rental income for leases for which the rental [ncome streamn s not systeratic, I
significant, is reported using the straight-line method rather than using the terms of the lease agreements.

Lessee-Financed [mprovements

Certain leases include provisions whereby lesses-financed improvements become the property of the Alrport.
Generally, the Arport records lessee-financed Improvements only upon leasehold reversion or lease
termination, at which time the improvements are capitalized at fair value and recorded as contribution income.
Lessee-financed improvements that reverted to the Alrport totaled 52,170,560 and 51,902,334 for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the Alrport as assets with an inltial individual cost of more than 55000, Capital
assels purchased by the Airport are stated at historical cost. Depreciation s computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of such assets. The estimated lives by general classification are as

ol o
Buildings and |easehold improvements 1040 yoars
Machinery and cqulpment 3-1% years
Improverments other than buildings S=20 years
Equipment, furnliture and fistures and other 3=10 years
Ramps, runways, faxiways and improvemonts 10-50 yoars

Capitalized Interest

interest incurred during construction periads is capitalized and included in the cost of property and equipment.
interest capitalized on projects funded by internally gemerated funds i3 based on the weighted-average
borrowing rate of the Airport and actual expenditures during the period of construction. Interest capitalized on
projects funded from bond proceeds is based on the interest cost of the specific barrowing, less Interest sarmed
on unspent, construction-related bond proceeds during the comstruction period, Interest is not capitalized on
project costs that are reimbursed from approved government grants andfor PFCs.

Interest expanse for the Alrport was 5342548 and 5395 560 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
respectively, while interest capitalired a3 part of the cost of constructed assets was 588,139 and 588,183,
respectively.
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Deferred Quiflows of Resources

The Alrport defers recogniion of losses incurred on debt refundings and reports such losses ay deferred
cutflows of resources in the balance sheets. Deferred losses on debt refundings are amortived using the
effective interest mathod over the lesser of the remaining life of the original bonds or the life of the new bonds.

Bond Discownits and Preminrns

Original issue discounts or premiums on bonds are amortized using the interest method over the lives of the
bonds to which they relate,

Compensated Absences

in accordance with the vesting method provided under GASE Statement Mo, 16, Accounting for Compensated
Absences, actumulated paid time off (PTO) is accrued based on assumptions concerning the probability that
certain employees will become eligible to recelve these benefits in the fubuwre.

Hon-sxempt employees earn PTO at the ate of 4.62% of hours worked per pay period for the first 12 months,
6.16% for years one through four, 10.00% for years five through nine and 13.85% for 10 years and beyond,
Exempt employees earn PTO at the rate of 15 days for the first 12 months, 24 days for years one through four,
30 days for years five through nine and 36 days for 10 years and beyond, Upon accumulation of 160 hours (20
days), at least 40 hours (five days) of PTO must be taken each calendar year or it will be forfeited. The maximum
PTO carryover from year to year is 360 hours (45 days). Employees will be paid for those hours (days) in excess
of 360 (45 days) at the beginning of the following year.

Federal and State Grants

Dutlays for airport capital improvements and certain airport operating expenses, primarily those relating to
alrport security, are subject to reimbursement from federal grant programs. Funds are also received for airport
development from the State of Arkansas Department of Aeronautics, Funding provided from government grants
is comsidered sarmed as the related approved capital outlays or expenses are [mcurred. Costs claimed for
reimbursement are subject to audit and acceptance by the granting agency.

From time to time, the Airport disposes of land or other assets which were originally purchased with federal
assistance. |n accordance with the Airport Improvement Program (AIP), the Airport must reinvest the federal
government's proportionate share of the procesds realized from the sale or éxchange of such asaets in approved
AlP projects or return such amounts to the federal government.

Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenues from airlines, concessionaires, lessees and parking are reported as operating revenues. Operating
expenses include the cost of administering the airport system, including depreciation and amortization of capltal
assets. Al revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expersss or capital contributions and granis.
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Voluntary nonexchange transactions, such as grants and contributions, are generally recognized as revenues in
the period when all eligibility reguirements have beem met Any resources received before eligibility
requirements are met are reported as uneanned revenues,

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available for use, it iz the Arport’s policy to use
restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed,

Reclassiffeations

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2014 financial statements to conform to the 2015 fnancial
statement presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the change in net position

Note 2: Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investment Securities

Deposiis

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank fallure, the Alrport’s depesits may not be returned to
it. State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository insurance and other acceptable
collateral in specific amounis.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, none of the Alrport's bank Balances were exposed to custodial credit risk. The
Alrport’s deposit policy for custodial risk requires compliance with the prosvisions of state L,

Imvestmenis

State statutes authorize the Alrport to invest in direct obligations of and other obligations guaranteed as to
principal by the U5, Treasury and U5, agencies and in bank repurchace agresments,

At December 31, 2015 the Alrport had no nvestrnents. At December 31, 2014, the Airport had the following

irvestments and maturities:
December 31,2014
Maturities in Years
Lii Mg
Type Fubr Vabuy then ] 5 =10 thenl0
Monsy market mutual femds 5 25173392 % 2517392 5 = & = 5

15173492 5 15173391 3 = 5 2 4 2
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interest Rote Risk - Intérest rate risk i$ the risk that changes in interest rates for debt securities will adversely
affect the value of an imestment. The Alrport's investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to falr valus lossss ariving from increasing nterect rates,

Credit Risk - Credit risk [s the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
chligations. The Airport's investment policy does not directly address credit risk, At December 31, 2014, the
Alrport’s investments were rated as follows:

 investmentType Rating Agency Rating
Maney Market Mutual Funds SEFM]I'!. BAKRS A S

Custodial Credit Rizk — For an imvestrment, custodial credit risk is the rsk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Alrport will nat be able to recover the value of its investmenis or collabersl secunties that are
in the possession of an outside party. The Airport’s investment policy does not directly address custodial credit
risk. At December 31, 2014, the Alrport's money market mutual funds are not subject to custodial credit risk
since their existence is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical book entry form.,

Swmmary of Carrving Values

Cash, cash equivalents and imestrment securities mchuded im the balance sheets are clazsified o folbows.:

015 014
Carrying value
Depodits 5 37,245331 5 35,332,645
Inwesbmen s - 2517392

£ 372457311 5 17.B50.037

Included in balance sheets

Curront assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5  24.EB4 339 % 17.BE37EOD
Restricted cash and cash equivalents —current . 514,132
Moncurrent asscts
Cash and cash equivalents —restricted 12 361,002 19,452,125

5 a7 3l 5 ars 7
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BILL AND HILLARY

CLINTON NATIONAL AIRPORT

LITTLE ROCK

Restricled Cazh, Cash Eqguivalents and Investment Securities

Cash, cash equivalents and investrment securities are restricted as follows:

2015 2014
Revenue Bond Inferest and Principal Funds % L 514132
Revenue Bond Resere Funds 1,132,337
Construction Project Accounts : B0 a3y
P Facllie S o __ 12381002 174a8mes

12 4

15 5F

The Passenger Facility Charge Fund has been established in accordance with Titke 14, Part 158 of Federal
Regulations, Other funds and accounts noted above have been established in accondance with the Alrport’s
Master Trust Indenture dated October 1, 1994, & amended, and supplemented from time to time by
Supplemental Indentures (collectively, the Master Indenture],

The Master Indenture provides, amaong other things, that certain accounting procedures be followed and certain
funds be established to prowide bond holders a degree of security against certaln contingencles. Brief
descriptions of these funds follow.

Revenues of the Airport are depesited into the Revenue Fund and are disbursed in accordance with the Alrpaort's
annual budget to provide for current operations and malntenance expenses. Such deposits are also used to
replenish balances in other funds to their required |evels under the Master indenture,

Revenues are generally defined in the Master indenture to include all revenues, fees, income, rents and receipts
derived by the Alrport from the use of the Ainport, including without limitation any use arrangements or lease
agreemenis, or from the sale of any properiy of the Alrport permitted under the Master Indenture.

Revenues do not include grants-in-aid, proceeds received from insurance resulting from casualty damage to
assets of the Alrport, rental or other charges [other than ground rental] derived from a lease or leases relating to
Special Purpose Facilities, the proceeds from the sale of bonds or other cbligations issued for Alrport purposes,
PFCs or interest earned on PFCs.  Amoonts in the Revenus Fund are pledged to secure the Alrport’s Revenue
Bonds, but all current operations and maintenance expenses of the Alrport System are paid prior to debt service
on the Alrport's Revenue Bonds.

Assets included in the Bond Accounts and Debt Service Reserve Accounts of the Principal and Interest Fund are
used for the payment of bond principal, interest and redemption premiums on the Alrport's Revenue Bonds.
The working capital shall be maintained at & balance not less than an amount reasonably estimated to pay the
operation and maintenance costs of the Airport for three calendar months. All remaining net revenues of the
Alrport are available to pay capital costs and major maintenance expenses.

Moniet held In the Airport's Construction Project Accounts are intended to pay the costs necessary to
accomplish the specific capital projects contemplated under each series of Revenue Bonds,
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The Airport’s Passenger Facility Charge Fund provides for the segregation of PFC receipts, a3 required by the
FAA. Such revenues are to be expended only for FAA-approved capital projects, or to repay debt issued for
eligibde capital projects, under & Record of Decision granted by the FAR,

in order to assure full and continuous performance of the covenants contained in the Master Indenture relating
to the punctual payment of debt senvice and the maintenance of revenues, the Airport has agreed to establish
rates and charges for the sale or use of the Alrport that, together with other income, are generally expected to
result in net revenues that, together with other avaitable funds (il anyl, are sufficient to provide: (a) 125% of
aggregate debt service for the current fiscal year; (b) 100% of the amounts, if any, required by the Master
Indenture to be deposited into the Debt Service Reserve Accounts during the forthcoming fiscal year. Other
Available Funds are generally defined in the Master Iindenture a5 amounts including, but not imited to, l=ase
revenues on special purpose facilities and proceeds from the sale of assets available for use throughout the
applicable flscal year, but not excesding 125% of aggregate debt service for such fiscal year, plus PFC recelpts,

Note 3: Grants Receivable

Grants receivable from government agencies represent reimbursements due from the federal government for
allowable costs incurred on federal award programs. Grants recsivable at December 31, 2015 and 2014, consist

of:
2015 2014
Federal Aviation Administration 5 1,514,965 5 2968114
U.5. Departmeont of Homedand Sourity 16,142 2,495,305

5 1931107 5 5463
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Note 4: Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, is a5 follows:

2015
s pinnimg Tradwryf Erading
Balanok Atk Dpriaky  Bedmioalns  Sdees
Capitsl ain e, At bl A deane se:
(S ] S1FATN0 b 1250 58 5 B 5 WA $ RSN GER
Commtruction i progrens BIISR1Y Las0ga) : 533300 _ IG5
Tt Cachi'th | @atrts, Aot Sing el ated Fi XTR D46 BLTAR AET = B SR0SA5) 15,415 BER
Cap'tal gvnet, Seing cepreciaied:
Builaingy avll | M TRETERA
Bl o, [rateETaR e 154 404512 1227 421 2,0% 12605990 456,500 1
& rpart paweTend TLEISREY Lk w A FTRE WA T ERE
CakEr [ prasersenty EHI EH& = Eﬂ EE,E?
152, M5 53R HARE I FL -] 556 EE4 403 158 B
gyl prrend, furnifyse ind Eatures
Fumature, Tinues 1580 ERT r B BLE 8281 20T N1T
B pieraswr 13,600 T X8 154 396 14 254 J 13213
Rl | b 184,068 pLr A 1] 27088 s 188000
Fireirygin 210810 + = g FRRLY ric
LET RS o Hi‘eiﬂ I?’!E!D = a EE_
T I AAS ALY 1 3%, A [TE 0543 ThE
Toas! cata) @y, belng depreciates a12 555 356 4754330 A8 073 6590345 437, 744 S5
L i o aNeE Brse re wh BR
Bl rgs arel |mproverean LR -E R 1070 845 EEl B FLE R LA}
B pevear, Tur tue s il F il nes i, 5554 50 1ARR 3R 174,153 - It Pk
Tota! ace urmlates desrecaton o MeasiAES _ e4sser 19724 ., 1m0y
T et 1| AT, B g BRASFLANE, Al 251 RGN P AT FEE]] 590,545 AR A B

Capital sunety, nat § AR AN bl FI.53 ] Iﬂll p ] i i'ﬂlﬁﬁll
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o]
Beginning Tranafery) Ending
Padanc s A Hicmy Recimuricat lons Balwnos
Capltal whvet, nok being deatediabed;
[FE] § b1, resass ] 158,300 : - § 1miagEe 0§ ALEER IR
Comiruction |n pragresn 15137137 10,203 552 = (06051 316 S TESR13
Tota! capital atsers, not belng dearaiasted 145,185 811 10983353 - (18 oid A TR T3 TR DA
Canital synem, being oeps o ams;
Bt ldings and | ooy eTen:
1Buill g g, i mpéaverments J3I8.BEI TR 1,828,760 BA33 13652067 154,436 572
B Pt BaESEE 12 9T 626 32133 = JIBITL 13379 2R3
e | mprayE-=ean A G4 5T 123 - 1RA03 i.._!'ﬂ.‘lli
7 [ &l 6 E}.I_. 13 504 EITH&II-
Fgul prrear, fornpine an 1 e e
Turniture, ferture 20IB5ES B BB 55 19,354 1581 687
Fguiamear 18,570,680 184 555 T BT B TG0, TIE
Rolling vy 1568635 2R05TS EiAdT - 1 B4 D6
Firetruchs 2,101 581 15139 B B L1 1EETD
ITyvimm - LA - * 207350
i AR L] THEI5E 113559 SOk 1 H5H
Total capital Banety, being depreclated oL a5 a8 2 755275 121,592 14 Gk TR AN 50 ¥R
Lens wecumulated Sepr eclation
Byl &ingy and b=aravementi 138,835 294 13,558,178 BAND - 151,479 038
Bbgui prrend, Barnitureand Exiunes B 50 hE1 1 AR50 Ao ART - e ARD
Tiota| @Ciumulated sepredlation ‘.IIT'E'I_'I [ I!Ei.'l'J-'II !'Iie:l! = IH].I!I.!E
fotal capital assets, being depreclated, net ___ 248843460 {11,190,037] SA73 __ DIGETA 751780528

Capital afiets, Aot I L jBorras] 3 173 4 2 STd
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Note 5: Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt activity of the Alrport during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, consisted of :
2015

Beginning Due in e
Ralange At by Redutiong Ending Balancs Year
Aeven e bosds payabla 4 9980000 % - & @pagopno) S - K -
Unamist sad di &cown t peemi um 63,7349 = 63,739} - -
E 10,023 533 & - Hmﬁaﬂﬂl _.E - _& -

Revenue bonds payable § 11120000 & . & (1160000) § 9960000 & 1,565,000
Unasmest sed diseownt/ peermiism 112241 ; [48,502) £1,734 18,977

illéiEll i - M iI.EE?H i EHIW?
Revenue Bonds

The Airport™s Revenue Bonds aré not general obligations, but are limited obligations of the Airport payable
sodely from and secured by a pledge of net revenues. Neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing power of
the Airport, the City of Little Rock, the State of Arkansas, or any political subdivision or public agency of the
State, othar than the Airport, to the adent of et revenues, is pledged to the payment of the Alrport Revenue
Bonds,

In July 2003, the City of Little Rock, acting on behall of the Alrport, [ssued its Alrport Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2003 (the 2003 Bonds) in the amount of 57,060,000, The proceeds from the 2003 Bonds were used to
curfent refund 53,540,000 in outstanding principal of the City of Uttle Rock, Arkamas Alrport Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 1994, and to advance refund 54,020,000 in outstanding principal of the City of Little
Rock, Arkansas, Airport revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1995, to fund a debt service reserve and to pay costs af
issuance. The 2003 Bonds were issued with interest rates ranging from 3.75% to 5%.

in lanuary 2007, the City of Litte Rock, acting on behalf of the Airport, issued its Airport Revenue Refunding and
Iimprovement Bonds, Series 2007A (AMT) and 20078 (Non-AMT) [collectively, the 2007 Bonds) in the amounts of
£3,600,000 and 59,115,000, respectively. The proceeds from the 2007 Bonds were used to current refund
53,705,000 in outstanding principal of the City of Little Rock, Arkansas Alrport Revenue Bonds, Series 1994, to
finance the acguisition of real and personal property and to construct improvements. for the Alrport, to fund a
debt service reserve and to pay costs of [ssuance. The 2007 Bonds were [ssued with interest rates ranging from
A% to 4.2,
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Advaneed Extinguis hment af Dabit

in December 2015, the Alrport deposited 5B, 785480 in an frrevocable treat with an sscrow agent (o provide
funds for the payment of all remaining principal and interest through November 1, 2016, the date the bonds will
be fully redesmed. As 8 regult, the 2007 Bonds are condidered defeazed and the Hability for those bonds has
been removed from the balance sheets,

The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the 2007 Bonds by 5318230, This amount has
been recorded &1 8 loss on the extinguishment of debt in the statements of revenues, sxpentes and changss in
reet pasition,

MNote 8: Risk Management

Risk managerment is the responsibility of the Alrport. The Alrport |5 exposed to various risks of loss related o
the theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; ermors and omissions; injuries to employess; and natural
disasters, The Airport purchases commercial insurance coverage for claimas arising from these risks of [oss, The
imsurance is renewed annually on October 1. However, effective January 1, 2002, the Airport did not renew its
liability coverage due to the cost of such coverage, opting Imstead for the existing provision of tort immunity and
coverage afforded by the Arkansas Municipal League's Legal Defense Program. The Airport’'s commercial
imsurance policies carry deductibles ranging from 5500 to 535,000, Settled claims have not exceeded this
commercial coverage inany of the past three years.

MNote T: Benefit Plans

The Airport has established a 401{a) defined contribution plan to cover all eligible employess. The plan is
administered by the Retirement Committee of the Airpart and the Airport has the right to amend the plan and
contribution requirements. As a condition of employment, each eligible employee mast agree to contribute to
the plan, The defined contribution plan requires the employer and the employes to contribute 10000% and
5.00%, recpactively, of the employes compensation to the plan. All contributions made by the eamployes are
100% wested and non-forfeitable at all imes. The contributions made by the employer become 100% vested
and non-forfeitable after five years of service, In the event of a forfeiture of the account of a participant, the
amount forfeited is first used to restore the account of a participant who is rehired, as provided for in the plan
documents. If at the end of the plan year the forfeiture account is at beast 515,000, the balance of the
ferfeitures are allocated per capita armong all participanits who are employed on the last day of the plan year,

The Airport also has a 457(b) deferred compensation plan that was amended in 2013 to require the Alrport to
match the employes’s contribution up to 3. However, the matching contribution made by the Airport is
contributed into the 401{a) defined contribution plan. The deferred compensation plan B available to
substantially all employees of the Airport, Under the plan, employees may elect to defer a portion of their
salaries and avoid paying taxes on the deferred portion untll the withdrawal date. The deferred compensation
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amount is not available for withdrawal by employees until termination, retirement, death or an unforeseeakle
emergency. An employes s fully vested at all times in this plan and the benefits are non-forfeitable at all times.
The plan assets are held in trust for the exclusive benefits of participants and their beneficiaries, and are not the
property of the Airport and are not subject to the claims of the Alrport's gereral creditoss.

The Alrport's contribution to the 400 (a) defined contribution plan amounted to 5925497 and S888,146 for the
years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Note 8: Hentdl Income From Operating Leases

The Airport leases space in the Airport terminal along with other land and bulldings on a fived fee, a5 well as a
contingent rental basis. Many of the leases provide for a periodic review and adjustment of the rental amounts.
Substantially all capital assets are held by the Airport for the purpese of rental or related use.

Minimum future rentals on noncancellable operating leases to be received in each of the next five years and
theresafter as of December 31, 2015, are as follows:

1016 5 6,241,724
2017 4,228,599
2018 4,209,443
2019 3335478
2020 3,329,156
Thereater 53,789,377

5 75133777

Note 8: Commitments and Contingencies
Capital Improvements

The Alrport s committed to various capital improvements, which will result in future obligations that are
significant in amount. The future obligations for the contracts will be paid from available funds or will qualify for
PFC reimbursement, FAA grants, Transportation Security Administration grants or Arkansas Department of
Asronautics grants,
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At December 31, 2015, the Airport had the following commitments:

Projea Expended Through Remaining

At T ization December 31, 2015 Cammitment

adrfiedd 5 1B937 879 5 5,197 192 5 13740687
Terminal 10,644,213 3,186,855 16857 358
l'll'k.ll'qlndlinld‘wip. y-“.ﬂl_ !L?E.l?] E]‘LE
Total S ¥ 177, I S ¢ -1+ 5 - I S £ N 1R 5 W

Litigation and Clafims

The nature of the busingss of the Airport generates certain litigation against the Alrport arising in the ordinary
course of business, However, the Airport believes that the ultimate outcome of these matters, in the aggregate
or individually, should not have a materially adverse effect on its financial position or changes [n financial
porsition,

Note 10: Related Party Transactions

The Alrport operates as a component undt of the City of Little Rock, Arkansas, Accordingly, there are certaln
related party trandactions that exist between the two entities, For each of the years ended December 31, 2015
and 2014, the Airport reimbursed the City of Ltle Rock, Arkansas, for approximately 53.3 million in expenses
fncurred on behalf of the Airport, Payments included contracted police and fire services and reimbursement for
utility costs associated with on-airport lighting.
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The Statistical Section’s objective is to provide users of the Airport's
financial statements with additional historical perspective, context,
and detail to assist in using the information presented in the financial
statements, notes to the financial statements, and supplemental
information to assess the financial condition of the Airport.
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STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

The Statistical Section provides information with up to ten years of comparable data.

FINANCIAL TRENDS AND REVENUE CAPACITY

The financial trend schedules depict the financial position of LIT over the years. The information provided
allows for an understanding of how revenues and expenses have changed over the years. The revenue capacity
schedules present the significant sources of LIT's operating revenues.

- Net Position by Component 77
- Changes in Net Position 78
- Operating Revenues and Ratios 80
- Operating Expenses and Ratios 82
- Airport Rates, Charges and Fees 84
- Principal Revenue Customers 85

DEBT CAPACITY
The schedules present LIT's outstanding debt over the years, related debt service ratios, and LIT's ability to repay
the outstanding debt and ability to issue additional debt in the future.

- Qutstanding Debt by Type and Debt Ratios................. 86
- Revenue Bonds Debt Service Coverage..........ccccueeueuue. 88

OPERATING INFORMATION
The schedules provide information on the distribution of LIT's carriers, passenger traffic, airport personnel, and
capital assets.

- Passenger Airline Daily Flights 89
- Airport Operations 89
- Airline Landed Weight Trend 90
- Enplaned Passenger Data 92
- Employee Trend 94
- Schedule of Capital Assets 95

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC DATA
The schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help readers understand the environment within
which LIT's financial activities occur.

- Little Rock Metro Population (Comparative Analysis) 96
- Little Rock Metro Population (Six-County Service Area) 96
- Little Rock Metro Personal Income Per Capita (Comparative Analysis) .........c.ccueuueu.... 97
- Little Rock Metro Personal Income Per Capita (Six-County Service Area)................... 97
- Little Rock Metro Unemployment Rate (Comparative Analysis) 98
- Little Rock Metro Unemployment Rate (Six-County Service Area) 98
- Little Rock Principal Employers 99

- Little Rock Demographic and Economic Statistics 100
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Net Position by Component
Fiscal Years Ended December 31

15 2014 2013 2012 o1
N#t Pasition
Net imestment in capital assets 5 322.300,670 5 312867506 5 311,522,353 5 260583850 5 230841367
Restricted for:
Dbt Servco - 3,442,039 3,204,793 5,005,366 EATI 613
Capital projects 13,740,299 12,737 136 16,788 108 19,131,475 JEGES 414
Uninesirictod T, THT pr a3y 26424 403
Total net position 5 360.510.907 5 354693888 5 345073647 5 311.581.830 5 291743807
o1 Z(H} 00E 2007 200
Net Position
Mt inwestmant in capital atsets 5 216,514,933 5 102,376ATT 5 187,391,345 5 179,209,507 5 175,537,550
Restricied (o
Dbt Seervige 6,115,070 6,576,831 10, BG4, 110 13,072,054 6,619,464
Capital projects 30,075 607 27 661,085 23 A48T A4 21415089 16,554, 435
Lhnre s ricted 78 7 a5
Total net pashibon 2 ai8 271 484 44 188 235 T80 215 677

Sourte! AMpG audited finandi st afamaars
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Changes in Net Position
Fizcal Years Ended December 31

205 2014 i ELIT 2014
Oiperating Revenues
Al iree PO 5 10I96AET 5 9SGHE30 5 9514053 5 BOTIAST 5 BOTATM
MNonalrine mvenues T 1 ! A1
Tioal operating revenues Y1237, 60 J0LEALR, 206 30,628,850 0,021 TR AT SIE515
Dperwting Expenins
Lalaries, wages and employos berefib 11,153,730 10,130,00% 9,632,355 BESEAED 7503938
Senace and supplics. S00FRS? LN SAa%3.107 5133 %092 4,181 345
i ntenanoe and repaln 116%116 1011 564 1OF1LAYY G612 Sl s
Lhuisthey LAGTREG 1974685 L7B4,159 LGas 278 L7EE.2133
Other 2,005,145 1,759,893 1,922,300 1,533,490 1,353,400
Total opemting experaes 21380193 20,101,509 19,844,655 17,714 241 15294,439
Dperating income befan: depreciation BASTANG 10546, 787 10,784,195 11307042 FEe e
Depreciation IA45900) 13909312 12014349 11219700 0654708
Cparating incoma [los) §4,600.551) 13,382,525 [1.230,154} 57333 573,368
Monoperating Revenee [Espenses)
Passenger lacility charges 1,856 BaG 4060, 772 £, 307 90 4, 716821 4581970
Federal aperating grant ER LR FeRA 264,963 26000 JL131
InbonEET NG Om dTOLLED L35 190,155 150,597 177,198
inborest expene {50, 768} {355,560 (377,461} [L213.058) (L3827
Galn {loss] on disposal of asaets Fr Rl 11188 (91, 540) SE TER X258
Paying agents and Ennsbees [16.446) [8.748] {B.05) |64, 415) [18.976)
iDther nomcaperating revenu [exponio) 1.073.169 145,193 2765331 {B52.590)
A263.017 L ELERYL 1053376 3350223 3AN0899
Income [Loss) Before Capltal Contributions 258 MR o050 LY. FFirrs] 144755 3 ohu 2EF
Faderal, §take and local grangs 437319 &AL 5,863,907 13,467 128 8, 361.058
Contributions: from lesicns AATFE0 L Lalvees LR LEOeSeL
increase (m Net Posithon 6AIE018 SE70. 246 24,904,003 19,833,023 5,159,809
Met position, Baginning of Year® _354G038RR  MSO642 3010639 202748807 I76SBROIE

Met Position, End of Year

Sowrce: Alnport oudited finonoiol stofement's
* in 2013, the Alpovt restated beginning net position for GASE 65 and prior peniod aaiustments fotaling 57,537 809,
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Operating Revenues
il ez Frveniaey $ BISIEIL § ROOONM9 5 BOVASS] 5 GS0064 5 597ROET
Nonairline Fevenues 17,156,226 15293964 15813241 15388066 13873412
Total opevating revenues 25,308,837 23333313 24,786, 192 21,908,030 15,847,399
Operating Expenses
Salsres, wages and employes beredits #0694 FFF A 7,350,554 Jianosr 5 558,400
Senees and dupplie 3,932,900 3679841 5477843 5.245.119 365L1%6
Madntenance and repale 1,187,713 1,036,633 943,383 BO5,721 Epaped
Utilties 1,549,088 1,886,671 1738131 1,450,193 1376,0559
Other LASLYS) 1170446 1103069 930S4r U265
Total operating experaes 15,567 650 1% 363,485 16,804,253 15502022 14,642,935
Opemting intoma bilon: depreciation 342146 ¥.959. 828 7982493 6,337,008 5304464
Depretiation 10211282 9766686 1056 84 ipadssl BS73038
Oyperating income (hoss) {BES, P36 1,806,858 925,805 (0, 435) 1 3s8.574)
Manopersting Revense [Expenies)
Pansenger facil ity charges 4,T15231 482,03 5,317,845 6051564 5EF5.624
Faderal aporating grants 291,041 {2353,757] 330001 320,090
inerest incomo 303,027 3a8.Ba8 643,961 140753} 1,308,292
Inberest expene f1,43%801) (1,534,718 [LB5%145) f1, 744 635) 1,447,300
iGain {loss] on dis posal of assets 33058 (3,319 111,209) . (13,337
Paying agents and tnatees |13,505) [8,505] {8337 {13, 505) (8, 395]
Other nonaperating revenue (expense] (80,540} [38,733) 29,937 24,173 [10,236)
366D LIIASA9  AGAIOND  GOMGORS 566047
income [Loss) Before Capital Contributions 2931916 [468,309 5588879 5,344,649 4,255,473
Federal, state and local grants 10,576,163 11231853 7,520,338 6,701k BOE7L28
Contributions from lesiees Al hES AT ESD 248 1% 2 04, PhE 2 HES 141
Inchease im Net Positkon 17317404 14,977 206 15357358 14,455 460 14,768,142
Met position, Beginning of Year® 25%,271,484 294594188  JXO536,790 215007330 200,309,188
Met Poaltion, End of Year 2 918 ) 224, fi ] It

Souree; Avport audited finonciad statemears
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Dperating Revenues and Ratios
Fiseal Years Ended December 31

Larding feesd

* AS0TEE 3 S132EEY 3 S0ALMT 5 S2040308 5 252 A08

Teminal building rentals ™ &, 7l 54 4,551 518 4,337 50 2,809,745 3,584,307
Faeility uts s 175,125 113,35 145,350 224,400 235,600
Total airfine revenues ___ 10,196,887 5,868,530 514,753 071,457 2,735
Farkirg and roadway oparations.
Parking fees 8,121,384 0,434,507 2,461,106 0,203,938 RA24,643
Girensd tram padLtien E04.3137 o3 B 4244 03,745 LERE
5,225 471 5,537,716 4,555,350 8,307,583 8,009,92%
Conceiabon mvenus
Rental car percentage fees 3,443,710 3,546 003 1,445 AH] 3,831,297 3,301,945
Terminal CONCE 5N Mevanues 1,182,673 1,298.579 1, 368854 1,345,929 1,179,707
L R ] 4,794 581 4,614,775 A977 236 4,4B1 655
Building rentals
Terminal 753,333 751 10 245,133 200,234 P63.378
Rental car 4% 363 Ry ) 2323 120,633 .
Crthet bl Idinggs 1,379,083 1,275,791 1,326,008 1,326,457 1,574,565
2,107,778 LEv3 05 1,803,618 1687304 1,837 842
Land Leasss 1,508 476 1,544,500 1, 768,550 1,768,943 1,126,085
Orthar Revenuss
Raral gar CF 9 2,465, TR0 2,409,357 2,189,008 2.562,711 2,541,945
Saraces sold 375275 336,260 330,404 323,652 205,023
General aviation activiby w07 168,748 151,542 154,906 186,092
Othr 115,097 130,091 272,062 166,372 111,252
AM5104  3ORIAS 3243077 3307681 3984372
Total nanaidline revenuey ILOILIA 2077905 J09A3T70 J0SM0A06 10,440.7R2
Total Operating Revesmne 317760 B T 021283 4§ 37.522.547
Engla e pasanger 596,837 1,038,307 1,085,323 1147836 1L102,739
Total Operating Revenue per Enplaned Pasenger 4 LM % L § mID 5 58 5 FLE:
Alrfine Revenue per Cnplaned Passenger ™ £ oex % Q03 % M % BE3 4 a2

Sowrce; Abport audited finonciod stofements

Maned!

{1 Effective Dic 2008, Adrling Fevnians chimgs o @ helidual 10 & compeniadony fate Brting methodology sl By Resolution,
(2] Begianing Dec 2010, a 3159 pev fransaction day Customer Foclity Chavrge i impoded on rental Gir ogencri.

{3} dsirfiree revernues adused fo exdude covpe landing fees.
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205 208 2007 00s
Alrlne revesuss
Larding feed £ SAMBAL % S2E2B00 % SAMTIE 5 4050000 & LTOADST
Temminad building rentats ™ 2,583 400 1,571,696 240,705 3,788 208 2,180,730
Facility use fies 245350 TA4R50 4,104 T3, 768 =
Total airfine revenues — B153811 2023305 BH73 601 ESHO06 5573387
Parking and noadhway oparation
Parking fess 8,058,860 TAYLIN TS, 261 T ATOASD FETLAR
Girewrsd iramporistion 133,135 101,876 1, 460 105, 710 106,708
8,191,855 7,529,156 7.913,720 7,576,560 B TTE15E
Concasubon mwenus
Rentsl car percentape fees 3,188,670 3,150,924 3,438 454 3452778 3438417
Terminal concataion revenues 1,175,002 1,162,632 1,232,965 1121617 BER.222
4,363,762 4,313,556 4,571,410 A 574,396 4 423630
Building rentals
Terminal 357,368 3R1996 A3, TIA 337,472 331,431
Rentad car " . 4 E z
b B ldirgs 1.522.458 1.488.303 1,459,545 1,235,584 1,195,227
1,A79,827 1.RBB0,209 1,843,263 1,553,066 1,536,658
Land Leases 1,132,066 1,188,834 1,044,890 1,024,767 EERET
Orthar Révefuss
Ranasl et CFC ™ 138,502 - . - .
Sarvices soid 181,221 171,884 B5,649 53,118 55,124
General aviation activicy 122777 113,037 154,083 137,800 136,720
iCither 146,076 137,198 29,246 59,250 71,880
SBA576 432,119 333,949 251178 163,824
Total nanaifine revenses 17,166,236 16263964 15813343 1 467 [E]
Total Operating Revenues L i3 792 % 1 ¥a9
Enplaned passangers 1,124,709 1184970 1,193,500 1,267,697 1,175,055
Total Operating Revenue per Enplaned Passenger % 50 5 MEE % M3 % 1728 % 1557

Alfing Revenue per Enplaned Passenger ™’ & 681 5 664 5 692 5 514 5 468
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Operating Expenses and Ratios
Fiscal Years Ended December 31

Operating Expensss by Typs
Salaries, wages & employes benefin

204

20

5 11193730 5§ 10430005 5 9632355 5 BOOGEED 5 7903938

Profed ond] sl GOt Serdie 4 1B8 836 &, 165 200 4,803 246 4, 10 408 4054917
Buildingt and groundd mainfenance: 523 850 159 459 505,231 284 A% EO4. 200
Equipment repair and maintenance 741,157 752,105 168,607 385,180 90,622
Markoking & public affaims 146,543 113,667 4,733 205,583 113,215
Lrilities 1LBGT BA5 L0974 ERS 1,784,159 L6B5. 778 1728233
Matenals and supslies B3.021 BED 154 Qa0.BE1 833,903 I26. 478
Irrance IR 059 IT1E17 Bo4 200 563,203 535 ¥34
Other 1,400,433 1,275,608 1,233,239 970,854 747,951
Tatal Opsrating Expensas by Type 5 21380393 5 20001509 5 19844655 5 17714251 5 16794438
Operating Expenses by Cost Center
Administration LEFE b 4,580,580 118963 4,231,235 383663
Alrfickd &175519 5,533,395 5,552,164 5.175.507 4,824,153
Termminal TADS 937 7126578 6,068 B3] 6379287 5. 740614
Parkirg 1,432,751 1,415,008 1498203 L479.152 1467003
Shustle 151,576 192,383 229,145 13817 X0, 172
Rental Car 108,771 o0,B42 T.454 4,170 L h |
Commercial/industnal E08.501 753,721 463831 131 142
Total Operating Expensesby Cost Cemter 5 21 3B0793 5 10100509 5 198440695 5 17714251 5 16,794,438
Enplanod pass ongers 996,837 1038, 307 1.085,313 1,147 886 1,102,739
Total Operating Experse per Enplaned

Passemger H 1145 5 1936 5 1818 5 1543 5 14.78

Sowrte: Avpot audihed finandi! st ofements
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Operating Expenses by Type
Salaries, wages & employes benefits £ WroeTEE 5 7TLE04 5 T350994 5 7140047 £ 5 96E4493
Professional and confractual Sorices 3,835,643 3,523,660 6,125,539 5459, 205 5323,508
Buildings and grounds maimenance L1B7,713  L036631  L425042  LO0B7G7 874,962
Equiprmint repair and malnlenance - - - - -
Marketing & public aMairs 55,711 292,825 . e ;
Lrtilities 1540086  LE9GETI  L73A131 1450193 137609
Maserals and supplies 147,257 156,181 164,503 113,810 99,913
Irdizance "
Crther
Total Operating Expenses by Type
Operating Expenses by Cost Center
Administration 3523448 3,589,509 3,453,384 4,010,554 3,385,915
Alrfigld 4515834 4,045,314 4,319,459 3.400.718 3,585,205
Temninal 5085187 5304581 6375003 6275971 5,587,368
Patking 2,034,865 1,580, G0 121481 1,400 814 1,634,575
Shutte 189,423 190,837 206,457 226,664 223,420
Rental Car . N . - -
Commercialfindusinial 209,130 184,034 235,307 248,300 118,273
Total Dperating Expenses by Cost Center 5 15957885 5 15355784 5 299 5 1 935
Enplancd passengen 1124703 11570 1193502 L7697 1275055

Total Operating Expense per Enplansd
Passenger -1 1415 5 1353 5 la@E 5 1228 5 1148
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Alrport Rates, Charges and Fees
Fiscal Years Ended December 31

Airline Rates and Charges

2015 10014 1013 frich ] 211
Lamding fee rate [per 1000 Ibs) -1 590 % 165 & 139 %5 339 % 3349
Terminal building rental rate [per Sq. F1.) 3413 3135 30.34 14,74 478
Gate Feo [per turn) 7790 7915 T5.00 75.00 75,00
let Bridge Fee (por tum) BB.50 68,50 15.00 25.00 25.00
Adrcrafi Ramg Fir 1,500,000 1,500,00 1,500L00 1500000 15000, 00
Remain Cwvernight (ROM] Fee TS0 7500 S0L00 S0.00 50,00

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Iln-l-lrll:lllrltt [pair 1000 b5} 5 139 5 333 5 362 5 LT3 5 208
Terménal building rental rate [per 5g. FL 1474 2474 3338 2284 2337
Gate Fee [per ) 75,00 0,00 59,00 £9.00 54,00
let Bridge Fee [per tum) 25,00 25,00 . : "
Alroraft Ramp Foo 1,500.00 1,500.0G 1,500.00 1.500.00 1,500.00
Remain Charnight (RON) Feo 50,00 50,00 . ¥ 5

Source: dirport Manogemient Recondi

Parking Fees [Dally Magimum)

20158 2004 2013 2013 2011
Parking Deck - 1300 5 1300 & 1300 5 1300 5 13,00
Short Tarm Lots (East and West) 13.00 13.00 13.00 13.00 13.00
Long Term Lot {South) 1600 10,00 10.00 10.00 10,00
Peanut Lot [Econamy] B0 Bioa B0 A.00 A.00

2010 1008 1008 2007 2006
Parking Deck g 1300 5 1000 5 1000 5 1000 5 10,00
Short Term Lots [East and ‘West) 13.00 10,00 10,00 10.00 10,00
Long Term Lot {South) 10.00 B.0O B0 /.00 A2.00
Peanut Lot (Econarmy) 8.00 600 .00 6.00 6,00

Fourge: Airport Manogement Records
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Principal Revenue Customers
Fiscal Years Ended December 31

Principal Bevenus Cusbomers = 20L5 Prigipal Re venue Cusborss s =113
Cursboemer % Tkl Custoner Curiomaer % Total Customer
Cumioimer B vEraE AEygriue ‘Cushoemier Ravenue REVENE
Dl A Lines g X 61558 1.0 Sodtraest &l ey g 2452 T8 1466
EAN Hildinga LSELETH nms EAN Haldingy &053, 107 1IN
Sout heve Al ines. LA 50 L% D s Ay Lisees 4050, 145 A0
Mk Budget Group 1598 555 LE 4 Avia Budget Group 1750480 5%
Loy i Loirasd Ly American Kidines LTandnl 0.5%
Und e Alr Linees LB 708 United &ir Lines inc 11804005 RA%
Dl Faboon Jet 1,503,757 EHE Carco Carriage | Herta) 1,036,287 SN
Carro Carriags [Heriz) L, BE0,000 LE HIME Host Inc =53, W5 54%
TAC Air LBE-L 525 Danaault Faleon bl BT B 454
HE ol LilLess 5. Ceedral Miying Senvice %39 1%
= B - e e
Mrincipal Revenue Customerns Prancipal Revenues Customars

2015 £0r13

(T

EEE
[T

E R

I| ”

"d"“’f ;if o
i Y

=

informantion prior t0 2003 s nof avolobie.
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Outstanding Debt by Type and Debt Ratios
Fiscal Years Ended December 31

{in thousands)

2005™ 2014 2013 2002 2011
Outstanding Dbt per Series
Series 199498 5 - & - 5 - § 9670 5 11,225
Series 2003 - g5 1,105 1,735 2,450
Series 2007A . 3,600 3,600 3,600 3,500
Series 2007E - 5975 6,415 EARIS T.2440
Unamosized (diseount] / premium - B 112 {17} (L]
Total outstanding debt 5 - 1 5 11,232 21883 5 M
Annual Debt Service
Principal 5 10034 5 1565 5 1116 & 2615 & 1515
Interest 651 452 FE ] 1179 1,290
Total debt service 5 w 5 E? 5 :I_.I?H 5 a?H 5 alm
Total enplaned passengem 837 1.038 1085 L148 1,103
Outstanding Debt/Enplaned Pastenger 5 - & 965 5 1035 § 1906 % 1232
Debt Serdice,Emplaned Pasienger £ 1072 & 184 % 164 %5 131 % 3.45
Outstanding Debt/Personal Income (Metra) § - %5 25135 5 217653 5 2 S6AE9 5 66425
Outstanding Debt/Per Capita [Metna) L - 5 1384 5 1565 & 215 5 3480

Fource: Alrpart Mandgparaers Reconds
{1} Serirs 19994 Bonds were defieosed upon colf Februany 2013,
{2 Serirs 2007 Bonds weve diefeaned Decermber 2015 upon flest coll,

Outstanding Debt
$40.0

Milllians

§35.0
S

850

1]
PR

10D

o

4006 00T J008 FOOO MO N1 0L 13 M4 K%
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Outstanding Debt per Serles
Seres 199494 5 13306 5 14115 5 15460 5 16745 5 21,675
Series 2003 3,005 1,705 4,280 4,835 5,370
Series 20074 3,600 3,600 3,600 3,600 z
Sgries 2007R 7,530 8,005 8385 &710 -
Unamortized (discownt) )/ premium = i? 45 pr [247)
Total outstanding debt 5 Now 5 29442 5 3.750 5 331982 % 26,798
Annual Debt Service
Principal % 2,305 2,280 2,185 2,165 1,695
interest 1,406 1518 1LE1D 1,609 1,405
Tatal debt sendce ] 3801 5 3795 & 1795 & 3774 % 3,100
Tota| enplaned passengers 1,17 1,135 1,194 1,768 1,275
Cutstanding Debt/E nplaned Passenger L Moy % oy & WED & JEH % 21,02
Dabt Service/Enplaned Passenger 5 13 5 134 &5 318 %5 208 % 243
Outstanding Debt/Personal Income (Metro] 5 73238 5 78632 5 BE533 5 SRAID 5 820,99
Outstanding Debt/Per Capita (Metno) 5 3907 3 4318 5 4779 5% 5135 3 41,30
Annual Debt Service
$128
B S0
£80
8510
LT

-
2]

2006 2007 1008 009 POLD 2011 12 2013 3014 2015

mPipal @ isaresd
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Revenue Bonds Debt Service Coverage
Fiscal Years Ended December 31

2015 2014 203%™ 2012 2011

Net revenues

Operating revenues $31,237,770 530,648,296 530628890 379,021 283 527522515

Less: operating expenses (21,380,2593) (20,100,509) (19.844.695) (17.714.241) (16,294,439}

Plus: intarest incoma 270,183 201,345 131,195 150,997 177,198

Net revenues $10,127.666 510,748,132 510975330 511 39 51L 74
Annual Debt Service

Principal " $10,023,738 § 1565000 § 1,110,000 $ 2,615000 § 2,515,000

interest 660, 768 452 118 673,174 1,179 060 1,250,040

Total annual debt service 1 507 5 2,017,118 1.783.174 T4
Debt Service Coverage

Revanue bond debt serice coverage - 533 6.15 302 3.00

Debt senice cowErage requirement 125 115 1.25 135 135

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Net revenues

Operating revendes $25309,837 523,323,313 524,786,792 521900030 519.847399

Less: operating expenses (15,967,690} (15363.485) (168042939) (15572.022) (14642935}

Flus: interest incoma 303,027 393,848 B43.961 1407597 1,308,292

Het revenues 9,645,174 5 B7E T.7 512,756
Annual Debt Service

Principal " $ 2395000 $ 2,280,000 § 2,185,000 § 2,165000 $ 1,695,000

interest i 040 1,514,759 1,608 E96 1,404,936

Total annual dabt service 3,301,040 3,794,759 754 536
Debt Service Coverage

Revenue bond debt service coverage 2.54 2.20 227 2.05 210

Debt service cowirage raquiramant 115 135 1.25 135 135

f1) Fr200 8 enciude recermption of Sevies 100%, 55 670 000
{3 dn FRI0QS, the Airporf deposihed 58 785480 in on irmevocmble Prusf with o0 esorcw agend fo proside fumds sufficleat fa defieass all
{3 remaining putsranding bowds,
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Passenger Airline Daily Flights
Fiscal Years Ended December 31

Dadly Flighi |8 Decarmibar K1)

Allrgaa &+ Gt b 13 Olawda, FLSFH] ] ay ol
Lo Ange s, CA(LAK] o

Amercan ey Gt 181 Dt T [T a To Ta | ro o o
Chicagn, I | ORD) an 50 1] 50 50 4 ] 50

Gali B Ehariothe, NC PELT) in
i 12 Mo iark [LRA] L6

macd &ldinen Gae SEET Bherevwesr, 001 (DER | in §1:] (1] 1o in in in
Chcagn, L{ORED] in L] a8 . - - -
Haounins, TH{BAM a0 &0 b1 &0 &0 41 ] an

Do o B+ Il roes Gt B E4 Axain 58 [ATL T 1] Th ] k] fa i
Mengh, Tl {MEVE - R ] 10 1o La 1o
Betsain, | DT 10 ] 1] 10 10 10 10

Fromtier Aviiney  Gaie @ Derreer, CO (BEK] [T} na

L0 A i it 12 Mow Oflmirn., LA | S8 20

Sittriaeal Alrlines Gales G0 51, & 13  Dala T [D&L) in 30 & &0 &0 (4] 6n
Chicago, 1L MW La 10 L] 1n 1o Lo Lo
Phganya, A | BHE() Lo La i 1] n 1o n 1o
Hinrdis, T |HOUS (1] 140 Lo L Lo
Balti e, W0 [ BAT) Lo LE ] 18 1n 1o Lo 1o
L W, KW [LAS) La LE] (E] 10 o Lo 1o
S Lo s, MO (ST 1o o jRi ) 1o

U A s G 5N Charigtte, & [CLT) 3q o ko o in in
W sgiion, DC |ECA) (1] 10 L

Vv 8 e ey G Ceslin, FLCDAIL - - na4 oa - -

Toks' Dacty Deoirtures Y Y I T T T T

Spcere; Avport ight dara from Passur (7013=-2014) U5, Deportmient of Tromsporiotion, Sureow of Tromspantotion Stotishia (2009-2017]
informadion prior fo 2009 i not cvaiobie,

Alrport Operations
Fiscal Years Ended December 31

Chperatians JOLS Fl L] 1013 2012 il il I Fo ] 007 FlLi
Adr Carra 341 0046 19183 0942 315382 19857 23519 4GB0 27813 AES
i Tand 14373 1680F 21606 2 1500 20 TRIVE KiARl 0 IAO8 MIBE 0 dEBA2  13A09
Ganara| Awiation 70 43513 43,304 AS0IT  AATES #4853 45179 S4EN EDBED 53232
Miktary 14 854 G4m0 128571  AWGA2 19330 2 1AA3D  SGAA 2162 0 232038 QAo
Tetal Opsratiem B6.654 1HLm 1 13z Als 127, i 133.L0A

Hrros: FAA A Traffic Reparts
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Alrline Landed Welght Trend
Fizcal Years Ended December 31
(Tb=, in thousands)

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Patsenger Alrfines
Allegiant 15,375 12,512 E,E669 - -
American 276,207 310,988 278,309 268,929 265,125
Contirental % - > 38,550 101,133
Delta 298,884 289,556 302377 291,676 296,782
Frontier - 23,047 23,461 46,2356 1,164
GLO Aidines 1610 - - - -
Morthwest . - . . .
Southwest 322,356 410,011 469,900 522,458 540,992
United 168,735 160,126 168,493 151,541 99,949
LIS Ainways 54521 £2,903 85,171 104,672 76,258
Vision - 242 BOO 242 8228
Charer 2,262 L1&0 74 - =
1,139.950 1,290,545 1,353,754 1,424 504 1,389,631
Cargo Alriines
Airborme Express . = -
Federal Express - = - = =
LiPs 135,520 134,957 135,167 134 333 134,846
135,529 134,957 135167 134,333 134,845
Total Landed Weights 1275478 1 =02 i G2l 558 524,475

Source: Manthly Aiellne Acthaty Bepodts
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2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Passenger Airfines
Allegiant - . - . .
Amedican 283,636 315,937 281,066 327,354 318,687
Continental 83,514 74,355 BE,T79 91,838 1nonr
Dela 284,581 276,642 214,076 241,480 279,832
Frontier - . 21,910 66,855 50,404
GLO Aldines - - - - -
Morthwest 5175 114,567 145,613 158 557 148 894
Southwest 562,936 551,010 572,290 570,384 573,154
Linited 108,535 - 34,550 - -
LIS Alrways 72011 69,765 74,388 75,158 64,303
Vislon = - - - -
Charier : 548 124 780 3522
1,406,403 1402824 1,430,796 1.533.406 1,549,513
Corgo Alriines
Airbome Express - = 15,389 23,495 26,488
Federal Express . 1,511 2,839 811 494
UPs 132,302 137,353 138,762 154,665 139,065
132,302 138.504 156,590 178971 166,047

Total Landed Weights 1,538,705 1,541,728 1.587,785 1,712,378 1,715,561
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Enplaned Passenger Data
Fiscal Years Ended December 31

ARLINES OO0 PSHARE 1018 2014 108 2012 2011
Adbegia it SNr 15,405 12719 T.065 2% a
ey - Bl 0 s 6008 114,258 113781 11R97E 7E.550
Agreer e Eagle 135,155 128,729 120,474 110450 137 449
LT o] B4 58 1850 s 5 .
Pacific Soulfwesl [FEAY 16,388 . . . .
Aeputilic il A48

Trmtia Slades = Arref | cam - - - . -
Continendal Alriines - - = - 160
Cortinantal Cxpresy - - - TGN 9. 05
Col garm A - - - 2599 AT GES
Dty At ine Zam.aan ZIBET 195,020 1ITE A5
Aaritic Southes Ll - - I0603 F3000 133,390
Chaiala e - - aa m 1048
Combis . 2138 1713
O s . 280 . “ FL
[ R . 3T '
Emprems Mol — Dl 16787 17544 15823 35,237 .
Fennileiit

ECradeatod [P nnacle 749 2130 B3E 24,741 2T AT
SErittla ey ics 258 35 139 L]
Sk = Deelia 138 - ] - 4981
Fronkier - I0.A6S 16,139 39000 a5
G0 Adrilimas. LLE - - - -
o e | A ] e -

m - . = . a
B - - - - -
Pinnat e s - E S 4
Semithveirhl A F | Rhiss 265453 03 AR EELW L] 565, 200 374, 74T
[TRNTT I ST FTe - . - " :
Expirik i St = Lk hint] 10E 149 119,030 134 384 135772 TE 40
Bepulilic - Uit a7 . . ; .
Slryravn = Liryiicd A7 946 R 48,191 10,371 2,111
S A vl s T A%0 139
LEICEY - A1TET - 17254 39,168
A Bl ch LU Exip, - - - . B
Ar Wisconain - 1019 - T -
Pagilic Southwst [FRA) AT A6 23831 - 1,180 206,08
Rapndil ie = 3531 - 3,044 .
Wizl Arline 5,635
Chapriers (i 731 597 . 241
Total laplanements o7 i | 47 k

Sowce: Monthly difine dofialy Repovfs
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AURLINES/ CODESHARE 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Adlpglang Ay - - - - -
Amarican Millnm - - - - -
Amarican Cagle 230, 2%0 Iroain X4, To4 2A7. 209 IRATRE
LT ] - - - - -
Facific Sauthvwest [FIA} - - - - -
Rapubslie . .
Trans Ssbm = Armrican . . i 24479 25,608
Dol il Alrlines r -

Conti seia] Capress 85757 SBIAT? 113,390 110038 112673
m|.|“ My . i F §
Delia Alrline 78 54] 1,352 58205 659.59F 111424
Adantic Sputhaast 1243738 135530 921100 G5449 41671
Chautaunes im7 T1.945 #1321 an 146 13507
CormAir 7 am1 i.513 1,807 S318 31448
Cormpans. A Adh wET - - -
0 et . : : = .
Express bt = Delia . = . u =
Py pedam 10,518 &,550 [ &7 5] BOSE 34,500
Endpaver Pinnecle IR 248 A7 540 - - -
Thiu e Arrer feas 157 it 2858 1658 =
Slcywan L = Della . 5726 Bay 17,718 .
Frinfiihis 175956 a48.145 39,299
GLO Adrlines . - . = E
Barthraent Airlanes 2,750 65218 EATH L TRET 97558
Cormpass ' - 7516 - .
Bl by - M 35
Finnacie . - IHA5T 25080 JEag%
S thravent Adrlines e am3 MAAT ERAS30 FLERE &0RTRT
United Adid s - - AETE b F LE -
Cxpress Jet = Lin| e 10,684 - 2BAZ0 - -
Bepublic - Usited : - . = .
Shywest— Linited TOEST &0O1E

Tranm Skates - Livdted . - - - -
LI =
M 30,789 59 1,980 4as 5355
e Ml e LS P Eip. 1596 4134 & EG
Adp Wisconsin . . N - 119
Facific Southwest [PSA) 43,554 Sa.0m3 67309 1373 AN, T
Bepublic - - - - -
Vis o Mrline - - - - :
Charters 173 ne - £ L] AT

Tod.al EngeLans rms sl 1024, 703 1. 153970 1.193.503 LI6T. 697 1&?‘!.055




é _ CLINTON NATIONAL AIRPORT
STATISTICALSECTION g

Employvee Trend
Fiscal Years Ended December 31

Department 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
101 Executive Office 2 2 2 rd 2 2
102  Administration 3 3 3 3 4 4
103 Humsn Resources 5 4 i a4 5 5
104 Customer Sepdlce 7 rd 5 d 5 5
105 Finance 10 10 ] | 9 - |
106  Procurement 5 5 5 5 5 a
107  Properises 2 2 1 1 1 1
108 Planning & Development 5 4 B 5 4 4
108 Government & Public Relations 1 2 2 2 0 1]
110 Air Service Development i 1 i i i |
2001 Airside Operations 17 16 7 16 15 16
202 Landside Operations 4 36 a 2B 6 31
301  mdrfield Maintenance 18 18 18 1E 17 16
302  Terminal Maintenance L] 53 L1 55 13 56
303 Information Systems 9 g 9 q B 7
A4 Commercial Facilities 2 2 2 2 2 FJ
305  Fleet Maintenance [ 4 i} 3 3 3
Total il T Tl 178 172 165 164 165
Sowre: dnproved Postions, Kronos Powroll Sustem
dnferristion prioe 0o 2000 0 ror Sviiaie By depart ment,
FULL TIME EMPLOYEES

17
185
180
155
150
145

2018 M4 3018 3pd2 3011 B0d6  Mo0s . 2008 007
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Schedule of Capital Asseis
Figcal Years Ended Decemibar 31

{in thousands)

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Land 5 66,183 5 BISERE 5 BL7H 5 b3.383 5 a7a80
Construction work in progress 9,236 9,290 15.1%7 25813 S48N
Capltal xsets not depraciated 75,419 73,178 76,532 149,196 103 301
Bubldings and imprevements I4GTE 359,419 343,829 27360 305,072
Equipment 0,553 19,550 19,337 12792 11,630
Infrastructure 3174 33330 12,580 3,687 15,821
Capital assets depreciated 423,725 412,59 396,145 287 833 351513
Less: accumulated depreciation [175,080) {160, 818) {147,202) {135,542} {151,199}
Net Capital Assets 5 334084 5 33050 5 S 5 00483 § 336
2000 2009 2008 2007 2006
Land 5 Nas0 5 Fa0 5 irash 5 ATABD 5 37,473
Construciion work in progness B, 116 B5,814 20, B30 11,107 13,839
Capital assets not depreciated oar, 586 103,295 58,111 48 558 51,314
Bubldings and Improveme nts 01,585 279,048 27000 Lieda3 265 483
Equipment 9,052 8267 B473 7.700 6,555
Inf rastruciure 27,268 18,577 1157 17,781 7,302
Capital assets depreciated A3, 30 E L 307,089 303 354 283,335
Less: accumulated depreciation {14560 {130.556) {130.834) 1113 2600 { 10k, 533)
MNet Cupital Avtets 5 295,344 5 2TRE2R 5 4349 5 AR L 5 IEUE
Sowrre; Aport oudihind financiod statements
2015
Number of commercial runways i
Number of commmerdal gates 12
Covered parking spaces (public) #51

Airport land area (approximately) 2,000 acres
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Little Rock Metro Population
(Comparative Analysis)
Ten-Year History (ak January 1)

Yaar
2015
2014
2013
202
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006

LS.
321,418 820
318,857,056
316,497,531
314,112,078
311,721,632
309,647,057
306,771,529
304,093,956
301,231,207
298,379,912

State
2,978,204
2,959,373
2,949,838
2,938,506
2,922,280
2,896,843
2,874,554
2,848,650
2,821,761
2,781,087

Metro

729,135
724,335
717,703
680,759
702,305
691,903
BE1, B8R
671,441
661,719
648,784

Socroe: U5, Deparimend of Commaror, Bunnow of Economic Analyst

Little Rock Metro Population

[Six-County Service Area)
Ten-Year Histary (at Januarv 1)

g8gEEEEERET

Pulaski
392,702
391,536
189,058
386,862
383,600
380,053
176,567
373,403
371,647
368,274

Faulkner
120,768
119,390
118,529
116,293
114,039
110,813
108,477
105,637
102,969

£9,192

Grant
18,144
18,046
18,035
17,957
17,887
17,751
17,718
17,483
17,442
17,244

Sewror: LS, Depanimerd of Commrer. Bureaw of Econamic Analvats

Perry
10,245
10,344
10,326
10,386
10,447

10,441
10,496
10,352
10,356

Lonoke
71,557
70,834
70,087
39,410
68,701
67481
66,086
64,373
62,648
60,225

Saline
115,719
114,185
111,668
109,851
107,631
105,362
102,599
100,043
96,661
83,4593

Total
729,135
724,335
717,703
680,759
702,305
691,903
681,888
671,441
661,719
648,784
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Little Rock Metro Personal Income Per Capiia
(Comparative Analysis)
Ten-Year History (ak January 1)

Year s, State Metro

2015 46,049 37,782 40,925
2014 44,438 36,529 359,880
2013 44,266 36,291 40,619
2012 42,453 33,961 38,602
2011 40,277 31,991 36,896
2010 39,376 31629 36,912
2009 41,082 32,434 37,443
2008 30821 31,180 36,649
2007 38,144 29,479 34,524
2006 35,904 27,915 32,641

Sowte: U5, Deparimerat of Commeeroe. Bureow off Economic Anoisis

Little Rock Metro Personal Income Per Caplta
(Six-County Service Area)
Ten-Year History (at January 1)

Year Pulaski Saline Lonoke  Faulkner Perry Grant Metro

2015 46,349 365076 34,897 33,350 31679 33,876 40,925
2014 45080 35196 34506 32,344 30,813 32,870 39,880
2013 46,593 3495 33908 32,391 30576 32,722 40,619

20:2 43,719 33,849 32,739 31,419 29,763 31,756 38,602
2011 41,492 32,543 31,749 30,333 28,552 31,016 36,896
2010 41,809 32,331 31,637 29,729 27,313 29,809 36912
2009 42,746 32,332 31,626 29,776 26,840 29,203 37,443
2008 42,089 30,833 30,651 28,965 25,299 29,062 36,649
2007 39,396 29,279 29,030 27,585 23,845 26,809 34,524
2006 37,060 27,944 27,617 25,870 22,999 26,025 32,641

Seored! US, Dwparimived of Commnite. Bureaw of Eodname Anadividl
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Little Rock Metro Unemployment Rate
(Comparative Analysis)
Ten-Year History (ak January 1)

Year LS. State Metro

2015 6.2% 6,1% 5,55,
2014 7.4% 7.5% 6.8%
2013 B.1% T.5% 6.7%
2012 8.9% 8.0% 7.0%
2011 0.6% T.9% T.0%
2010 9.3% 7.5% 6.4%
2009 5.8% 5.4% 4.6%
2008 4.6% 5.2% 4.5%
2007 4.6% 5.3% 4,7%
2006 5.1% 5.1% 4.6%

Sowrce; Stateof Arkmnsas: Depariment of Workforor Seraces

Little Rock Metro Unemployment Rate
(Six-County Service Area)
Ten-Year History (at January 1)

Year  Pulaski Saline Lonoke Faulkner Perry Grant Metro
2015 5.6% 4.9% 3.2% 5.7% 7.7% 5.6% 3.5%
2014 6.9% b6.2% 6.4% 7.0% 8.9% 6.8% 6.8%
2013 6.9% 6.3% 6.3% 8.23% B.7% 6.7%
2012 7.2% 6.5% 6.8% 8.7% 7.2% 7.0%
2011 T.1% 6.6% 575 B.2% T7.0% T.0%
2010 6.4% 6.3% 6.0% 7.5% 6.8% 6.4%
2009 4.6% 4.4% 4, 4% 5.5% 5.1% 4.6%
2008 4.7% 4.1% 4.3% 4.8% 4.9% 4.5%
2007 4.9% 4.5% 4.3% 5.1% 5.0% 4.7%
2006 4.7% 4.2% 4.4% 5.0 4.8% 4.6%

Spewew; Srae of Arkonsay: Deparimend of Wevl foror Services
MatE Not Beaiomely adjuaied

3833383
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Little Rock
Principal Employers

2015 1005

Ermplayer Evployess  Percerdape of Totsl Rank Employees Percentage of Total Rank
Pt of Arkindas 34,900 22.91% 1 13377 15.78% 1
Lacal Gevernmant 27,200 17.85% i - - -
Fesderal Gosernment 9,900 G.50% 3 13,000 TEN i
Universny of Aranias Medical Scienoes 5,10 3978 4 8500 5560 3
E.I-ptlnihllh 5, 300 3.48% 5 7 C0 455 5
Likthe Back Alr Foroe Base 4,500 1.05% & 4,500 1% [
Artansas Children’s Hospatal 4,000 163% 7 - - ¥
Lirthe Bk Sches| Disarict 3,500 1.30% 9 B34 551% i
Central Arksriad Velerand Mealth Care 2 B0 LA4% in 1 TES 1R 10
Total 101,200 [ 66,59 ey

Sowere: Little Rock Chamber of Commenoe
* - Dafa mot swaiknblr for J006
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Little Rock
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Per
Capita Unemployment
Calendar Personal Personal Percentage
Year Population® Income” Income Rate

2006 183,133 5 6,195,023,124 5 33828 4.6%
2007 183,133 6,553,597,538 35,786 4.7%
2008 183,133 6,984,143,221 38,137 4.5%
2009 183,133 7,153,174,980 39,060 5.9%
2010 193,524 7.374,425,544 38,106 T.2%
2011 193,534 7,365,910,488 38,062 6.7%
2012 193,524 7.807,919,304 40,346 7.1%
2013 193,524 8.062,596,838 41,662 T.2%
2014 193,524 8,273,731,572 42,753 6.9%
2015 197,706 8,175,337,754 46,409 4.0%

3 Popukition of Lifthe Back, AR wslag 2000 Cansus dvd 2000 Cevarinl
2015 Populstion ond Per Copita Persanal income, Ftfiosd wikew. cevasus. gow'guiokfnor s Tobdey PS FOMS2 1.5,/ 0%40 100G, 05
- Peraonal Incame & o calcularion of per capita income muliplied by the popularion
Sowroe: Mefropdan = Counci of Locol Gowmweeats, DScoverdrkansas.net and Greater LitDe Aock Chowm ber of Comnenoe
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Independent Auditor’s Single Auditor’'s Report

Independent Auditor’s Passenger Facility Charge Compliance Report
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal Granter (Pes-Through Gramtor]  Fodoersl CFDA  Pass-Threugh Entiny Tet sl Fedaral
Program or Chuster Titke Hurnbar i N u

LS. Department of Trans portatiion = 20,106 03-05-0005-T4 5 50 Eak
Federal Aviatdon Adminiswation/ 20,106 03-05-0035-T9 376 593
AT part Improvement Pragram 2006 03-05-0035-80 36 &8
20106 02-05-0032 5-81 212,017
10106 03-05-0035-83 2,241 489
20106 OE-005 0003 5-84 ‘EE
3,503,531
U5, Diepa rl:r'l-l!ﬂl:l:-me‘rElarldEl:turit‘,’— S7.030 H5T502-13-H-59 411 126 467

Trarspertation Security Adrinistratian)
Law Enforcement Officer Remburiemant
Agraamant Program

US. Depa rhmnt.:-mel.lndSacurlb,‘— S711F H5T=04-10-H-RECL 1% 119,166
Trarspormton Security Administration
American Racovery and Reinwes trent Act
— Alrport Chiecioed Bagga pe Inspecton
Syitem Pragram

Total expenditures of federal awards 3 749 564

Hotes o Schedule:

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards [the Schedule) includes the federal award
sttty of the Bill and Hillary Clinton National Airport (Airport) under programs of the fegeral govemment
for the year anded December 31, 2015, The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Schedule, The
information in this Schedule & presented in accordance with the reguirements of Title 2 U5, Code af Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniferm Adminatratnee Reguirements, Cost Principles, ond Audit Requirem ents for
Federol Awards [Uniform Guidance). Bacause the Schedule presents only a selected porticn of the
operaticns of the Alrport, it is not intended to and doss not present the financial position, results of its
cperations, changes in net position or cash flows of the Alrport.

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reporbed on the acerual basis of acoounting. Such expenditures
are I'Ei:ﬁ!l'ﬂ'!-!H Hlﬂ'h'l'l'll, & apphicable, sjither the codt princighed in OME Circular &-87, o Uhe codt principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of sxpenditures ane not allowable or are limited
&S 1o e bersament. M'El-all:\'! amounts shown on the Schedule, if any, represent adpustments o cregdits
rmdde in the normal course of butingds 1S amounts reported a8 &xpenditures in prior years, The Arport has
eslected not 1o use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidanoe.

The Airport had no federal loans that they were administering as of December 31, 2015,

The Airport provided no federal awards to subrecipients,
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Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Ower Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial
Statemaents Performed in Accordance with Government Avditing Standards

Little Rock Municipal Alrpart Commissian
Bl and Hillary Clinten Matianal .Hl'p-nl't
Little Rock, Arkansas

W have sudited, in accordance with auditing standards generally scoopted in tha United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goverrmment Audtiing Shandonds,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the Bill and
Hilllary Cknaon Matkonal Alrport [Airpert], a campanrent unit of the City of Little Rock, Arkansas, which
comprise the statement of ned pedition as of Decomber 31, 2015, and the related statemenis of
revenues, expenses and changes in net pesition and cash fliows for the year then ended, and the related
motes to the basic financdal Matements, and have Hswed our neport theneon dated dene 1, 2016,

taternal Contrel over Fiaanciel Reporting

Manapernent of the Airport is responiible for establishing and maintaining eMective intermal control
owver financial reporting (Entemal cantrol), In planning and perlonming our audit, we considened the
Alrport™s internal contred to detenming the audit precedures that are apprepriate in the ol rcumatanees
fior the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the punpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectivenets of the Airport’s infernal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinich on the effectiveness of the Airperts internal contred,

A& gobickoncy in internal contred axists when the design or oporation of a control does not allow
management or emplayees, in the nonmal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misatatements on a timely basis, & materisl weskness it a deficiency, or a
combinaticn of deficiencles, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable pessibility that a matenal
misstatlemant of the Alrports’s financial statements will not be prevented or dotedted and correcied on
a timaedy basis, A significant deficiency & a defickency, or a combination of deficiencied, in internal
control that i less sevene than a material weakness, yet important enough to menit aitention by those

charged with governance,

Dur consideration of internal control wai for the limited purpese described in the first paragraph of thia
vection and was net designed 1o identify ol delicienches in nternal conirol that might be material
weaknesses or signilicant defciencies, Ghven these Bmitations, during our audil we did not ldentiy any
defichencies Inipternad controd that we conslder to be material wealnesses. Howewer, material
weakneiies may exist that have not been identified.

Praxity;
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Campliance and Other Matien

Az part of obtaining reasonable assurance about wheiher the Anport"s financial statements are free of
material misstotement, we perlormed tevts of it comphiance with certain previsiond of lews,
regulations, comracts and grant agreemeents, noncompliance with which could have o direct and
maierial effect on the defermination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinéon on
coenpliance with those provisions was not an objective of ouar awdit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an openion. The results of owr bests disclosed no instarnoes of nontompliande or ather matiers that
are reguied 10 b reported under Goveramenl Auditing Srandarnds,

e noted certain matters that we reported 1o the Alfport’s management in a separate lemer dated
Jisnie 1; 204G,

Purpase of this Repart

Thiz purpese of this repar b selely 1o descnbe the scope of our testing of internal controd and
comgliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effoctivenass of the
entity's intemal eantral of on compliance. This report & an integral part of an audit performed in
acoondancd wilh Govermment Auaiiing Mandordd in condidening the Anmport'd internal contrnal and
compliancg, Accordingly, this communication is not suitabie for any other purpese.

BED L

indianapolis, indiana
liAe 1, 2036
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

independent Auditor's Report

Little Reck Municipal Alrpart Commilssian
Blil and Hilkary Clinton Matlonal Alrport
Lietle Rock, Arkansas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have sudited the eampliance of the Bill and Hillary Clintan Natienal Arport's (AIFpor] with the types
of compliance requirements doscribed in the OMWE Compitance Suppiement that could have a direct and
material efipct cn the Alrport’s major foderal program for the year ended Decombor 31, 3045, The
Airport’s major federal program is identified in the summany of auditor's results section of the

B oodnparrying Schedu e of findings and questioned o,

Manogement’s Responsibllity

Mansgerment is responaible for compliance with the requirements of lws, regulstions, contracts and
grants applicable to s federal programs,

Auditor's Responsibllity

Our responsbility & to express an opinian on compliance for the Alnport’s major federal program based
on owr audit of the types of compliance requirements referred 1o above. We conducted ouwr audit of
complianoe in accardance with suditing standsrds generally sccepbed in the Uinited Staies of Amarica:
tha standards applicable to financial audits contamed in Govermvment Auditing Shandards, Bsued by the
Comptroller Gerneral of the United States; and the avdit requiremsents of Tithe 2 U5, Code af Fadeval
Aegufarions Part 200, Linifarm Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Al Regquirements for
Federal dwands (Unilorm Guidance]. Thest sandards and the Unifarm Guidano reguine that we plan
and perform tha audst to obtain reasonabie assurance about whother norcompliancg with the types of
complianoe requirements refermed 1o abowe that could have a direct and material gffect on a major
bederal program octurred. AR budit neluded examining on & 1691 bah, eadence about the Arpa’y
cemplianos with those requitements and performing such olher procedures o8 we oonsiderod NeCEssary
in the cincumstances,

W believe that our audit pravides a roasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the majos
federal program. However, our audit doed not provide a begal determénation of the Alrpert's
compliancn.,

Praxity;
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Opindon an 8 Majar Federal Pragram

bn sur opinion, Bill snd Hillsry Clinton Mational Airpart complied, in all material respects, with the types
of campliance reguirsmants refermed 1o abieve that could have a direct and material effect oo (ts magor
foderal program for the year ended Decomber 31, 1015,

Repart on Internal Control over Complance

Managoment of the Alrport s responssble for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control
ower compliance with the types of compllance fequinements referred to above. In planning snd
parforming our oudin of complance, we considered the Alrport™s internal control over complisnce with
the types of requingmonts that could have a direet and material offect on B85 major federal program te
determing the auditing procedures that ane appropaiate in the croumstances for the purpose of

expressing our apsnion on campliance far the major federal pragram and to Test and report an nternal
peditrel ower cormpliance in stcardance with Undarm Guidames, but pot for the purpode of expressing an

opinicn on the effectveness of inbernal control over complance, Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Alrpon’s intermal control over compliance.

A dofickency In internal contred over compliance extits when the design o operation of a contral over
compllanco doos ot allow management oremployees, In the normal course of performing their

assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
riquirement of a federal program on & thmety basis, A matenisl weskness in internal centrol over

compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficioncies, in intermal controd over complianop swch that
there i a reasonable possibdty that material noncompliance with a type of complianoe requiremant of
a federal program will nof be prevenied, or detected and cormecied, on a timehy basis, A significant
defichency Im inbernal contrel over complance i o deficiency, or 0 combination of deficiencies, in nlernal
contrel over complinnde with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that |5 less sovers
than a material wealness in internal controd over compliance, yet iImportant enough to morit athention
by those charged with governance.

Our gonrsidaration of internal control over compliance was for the imited purpose descnibed in the fest
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all dofickencics in intemal control over
comgliance that might be material weaknesses of dignificant deficiernces. We did not identily any
deBdentiis ininternal control awer compliance that we cordider 16 be matennl weakniised Howenis,
material weaknoises may euist that have not boen identified,

The purpose of This repart @n intemal contral ower compliance i solely bo desonbe the scope of our

testing of internal controd aver compliance and the results of that testing bated on the requiremenits of
Uniform Guidance, Actordingly, this repert ks not sulfable for any other purpeose,

FBEDLp

indianapolis, indiana
Jise 1, 2006
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Summary of Auditor's Resuits

Financigl Statements

1. The type of report the suditor isseed on whether the financial staternents avdited were prepared in
attordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAR)
wad

Elunmodified [ ] Qualified [] Adverse [ cisclaimer

2. The independent auditor's report on internal control over financial reporting disclosed:
significant deficiencylies)? O ves (] hore reported

Material wealkress(es]? D"l':-s E Mo

3. Noncompliance considered material to the financial statements

was diselosed by the audit? [ ves (] mo
Federal Awards
4. The independent auditer's report on internal control over compliance for major federal awards programs
disclosed:
Significant deficiency|ies)? D"l'l:-s E None reported
Material weakness{es)? ] ves (4 vo

5. The opinion exprestad in the independent auditor's report on compliance for major (ederal awands
WETE

E Unmodifisd D Qualified I:l Adwerss D Dasclaimer

& The audit disclosed findings reguired to be reported by 2 CFR
00.516(a)? ] wes (] Mo
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7. The Airport’s majpor program wai!

Clustar/Program CFDA Number
Alnport Improsernent Frogram 20.1106

8, The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was 5750,000,

9. The Organization qualified as a low-risk audites? D"l':-s E Mo
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Findings Required to be Reported by the Uniform Guidance

Rataiands Qispatianed
Humber Finad img Costs

Mo matters are reportable,

Findings Required to be Reported by Government Avoifing Standards

Reforence
Humbar Firding

Mo rmatters are reportable,
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Reference
Numhber Summary of Finding Status

Mo matters are reportable,
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Report on Complance for the Passenger Facllity Charge Program
and Report on internal Control Over Compllance

Iindependent Auditor's Report

Little Rock Municipal Alrport Commilssion
Bl and Hilkary Clinton Mational Alrport
Littie Rock, Arkansas

Bepart on Com pllance for Passenger Facility Charge Program

We have audifed Bl and Hillary Clinion Natiomal Alrpost’s (Airport) compliance with the types of
complianco requiremenis described in the Pozsenger Focility Chorge Audit Guide for Prbiic Agencies (the
Guide] msued by the Federal Aviation Administration that could hive o direct and material effect on the
passenger facility change program fos the year ended December 31, 2015,

Monogement’s Responslbllity

hanagement (s raponsibhe for compliance with the reguirements of laws and reguilations applicable to
1% passenger taciliy charge program.

Auditor's Responsibility

Dur responsibiity & to oxpeess an opinkon on the complianor of the Alrpert based on our audit of the
types of compliance requinements referred to above. ‘We conducted cur audit of compliance in
secordance with suditing standards generally aceepted in the Urited States of Amersca; the sandards
appScabile to fnenclal sudits containied in Gevernmeal Auditing Stondmds, Biued by the Compoolber
Geraral of the United States; and the Guide, Those standands and the Guide require that we plan and
parform the audit fo obtain reasonable amurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance regquirements refermed to above that could haove o direct and matenal eMect an the
passenger facility charge program odcumed, An audit includes examining. on o test badls, evideros
about the Alrport’s comipliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considened necessary in the circumstances,

Wi bolvg that our audn provides a reasenable basss for our opinkon on compliance with the passengor
tacility charge program, Howewor, our audit dogs not prondde a legal determination of the Alport's
pompliance.

Praxity;
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Oplndon on Possenger Facliity Charge Program

I our cpanian, thie Bil and Hilkery Clinton Maticns) Airport complied, in all material respects, with the
Types of compliance reguerements refermed 1o above that could have a direst and material efilect on s
pastenger facility charge program for the year ended December 31, 2015,

Repart on Internal Contrel Over Compllance

Management of the Alrport 15 reiponsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal contred
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
periorming our audil of compliance, we considered the Alrports internal contrel over complisnce with
the types of requinemants that could have a direct and material effedt on the passenger facility charge
program to determine the avditing procedures that are appropriate in the cincumstances for the
purpese of expressing our opinien an compliance and 1o test and repert on intemal contnol aver
compliance in sccordance with the Gusde, but not for the purpost of expressng an apinian on the
effectiveness of intomal control ever compliance, Accordingly, wa o POt express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Adrport's infemal condrol over compliance.

A doficiency In internal contrel over compliance extits when the deign o speration of a confral ever
compliance doos not allow managemont or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, pencompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of the pasienger facliy charge program on a timely bast. A material weakneds in miennal
cenirel over complinnte is a deficiency, o combination of deficiencies, in internal contrel over
compliance such that there i5 a reasonable possibility that matorial noncomipliance with a type of
compliance requirement of the passenger facility charge program will not be prevented, or detected and
correctied, on o timely bagis. & signitcent deticienty in inernal contnel ower complinnce i o defickency.
of 8 combination of deficiencies, in imbernal contral ever compliano with a Type of comipliance
requiremaeni of the passenger facility charge programs that ks bess severe than a materdal weakness in
intermal control over compliance, yel important enowugh fo merit attention by those charged with
povemante.

Our corsideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the fiest
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all defichencies in intemal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or signiBiant deficlences. We did not identily any
dofickencics in internad controd over compliance that we comiider 1o bo matenial weaknessos. Howewer,
material weakmneszes may cxist that have not beon identified,

The parpose of this repart an inbemal control o complianoe 1§ solely 1o descrbe the scope of our

testing of internal control aver compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Guide. Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any other purpose.

BEDLP

Indianapolis, indiana
Jisne 1, 200G
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PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE AUDIT SUMMARY

Summaory of Avditor's Resuhis
1. Type of report issued on PFC financial statements. EJurmedified [ Qualified
2. Type of report on PRC compliance. [ urmedified  [_] Quatified

3, Quarterly revenue and expenditures reconcile with
submitted quarterly reports and reported wnliquidated
revenue matches actwal amounts., E ¥ai D MG

4, PR revenue and interest is accurately reported on FAA
Form 5100-127. B] ves Cne

L. The Public Agency maintains a separate financial
accounting record for each application. (] Yes Lmeo

£, Funds disbursed were for PFC-gligible items as identified
ir the FAA decisian o pay only for the allowable costs of

the project. E Tas I:I Mo
7. Monthly carrier receipts were reconciled with guarterly
carrier reports. (<] ves (L

8. PFC revenues were maintained in a separate interest-
bearing capital acoount or comminghed only with ather
interest-bearing airport capital funds, E Yes D Mo

9, Serving carriers were notified of PFC program
actionsfehanges approved by the FAA Yes Onea

10. Quarterly reports were transmitted (or available via
website] to remitting carriers. B4 Yes One

11. The Public Agency is in compliance with Assurances 5, &, 7

and 8 (] ves O me

12 Project design and implementation is carred outin
accordance with Assurance 9, E ¥as D MG

13, Program administration is carried cut in accordance with
Assurance 10, (<] ves ne

14. For those public agencies with excess revenue, a plan
for the use of this revenee has been submitted o
the FAA for review and concurrencs D Yas D Mo E NfA
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Findings Reguired to be Reported by the Guide

Reference Questioned
Number Finding Costs

Mo matters ane reportable,
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Reference
Murnber Surmmary of Finding Status

Mo matters are reportable,




